
 
 

 



 



Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 

Regular Meeting No. 610 
Monday, October 9, 2017, 6:00 p.m.  

Webb Hall 081, Mattoon  
Agenda 

I. Routine. 

 

A. Call to Order. 
 

B. Roll Call. 

 

C. Consent Item.  
(Any one member may remove an item from the consent item list simply by 
requesting the Chair to do so.  Items removed will be discussed and voted 
immediately following passage of the consent item.) 
 

1. Approval of Minutes of September 11, 2017, Regular Meeting.  
2. Approval of Minutes of September 25, 2017, Special Meeting.  
3. Approval of Agenda of October 9, 2017, Board of Trustees Meeting. 
4. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses.  

This information will be reviewed by the Finance Committee and 
presented by College administration for approval with full assurance by 
management they have been prepared in good faith to follow all applicable 
laws and board policy. For summary and details of bills refer to: 
http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm 

5. Destruction of Tape Recording of April 11, 2016, Closed Session and April 
7, 2016, Finance Committee Closed Session.  

   
 

II. Hearing of Citizens, Faculty and Staff. 

 

 

Board Book Page 3



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – October 9, 2017 
Page 2 
 

 

III. Committee Reports.  
 
A. ICCTA/Legislative   Mr. Mike Sullivan 

Ms. Ann Deters 
B. Resource & Development  Ms. Doris Reynolds 

C. Finance    Ms. Ann Deters 

D. Buildings & Site   Mr. Dave Storm 
E. Student Report   Mr. Charles Meaker 

F. President’s Report   Dr. Josh Bullock 

 

IV. Business Items. 

 

A. Non-Action Items. 

  Board 
Book Page 
Number(s) 

1.   American Heart Association Silver Workplace Health 
Achievement Award. 

22-23 

2.   Faculty Focus on Advancing Student Success – Broadcast 
Sales Certification.  

 

3.   Announcement of 2017-2018 Student Ambassadors. 24 
4.   Student Laureate Nomination.  25 
5.   Curriculum Committee Highlights.  26-27 
6.   Proposed Revisions to Board Policy 07.12 – Talented 

Student Scholarships.  
28-30 

7.   Calendar of Events. 31-32 
8.   Correspondence. 

 
33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 4



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – October 9, 2017 
Page 3 
 

B. Action Items. 

  Board Book 
Page 

Number(s) 
1.   Presentation of Audit and Board Acceptance.   
2.   Approval of Proposed Revisions to Policies in Sections 1, 

2, 3, 4 and 8 from Policy Manual Annual Review. 
34-55 

3.   Approval of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy 08.07 – 
Registration of Registered Sex Offenders.   

56-58 

4.   Approval of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy 04.07 – 
College Spokesperson and 11.21 – Marketing Materials 
and Publications.  

59-62 

5.   Approval of Guidelines for the Administration of Talented 
Student Scholarships.  

63-67 

6.   Acceptance of Reporting of August 2017 Financial 
Statements. 

68-73 

7.   Approval of Spring 2018 Tuition and Fees Rates.  74 
8.   Approval of Health Insurance Plan Recommendation.  75 
9.   Approval of Recommendation of Bid Award for 2017 Ford 

Fusion Purchase.  
76-77 

10.   Approval of Resolution No. 1017-003 - Intent to Continue 
Foundation Tax Levy.  

78-80 

11.   Certification of Fall Student Government Association 
Election Results.  

81-83 

12.   Approval of Facilities Master Plan.  84-155 
13.   Approval of Recommendation from the Advisory 

Committee for the Naming of Northwest Building Room 
114 as the Heartland Dental - Dental Hygiene Lab. 

156-157 

14.   Approval of Recommendation from the Advisory 
Committee for the Naming of a Park Area on the Campus 
Main Grounds as Dr. William L. and Margaret Podestá 
Park.  

158-160 

15.   Approval of Perkins Specialist Position.  161 
16.   Approval of Director of Foundation Operations Position. 162 
17.   Approval of IDOC Intergovernmental Agreement with 

Southwestern Illinois College District No. 522 for 
Educational Services with IDOC.  

163-167 

18.   Closed Session.  
Pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 
Sections 120/2(c)(1) and (3) [Illinois General Assembly 
2017 et. Seq.], closed session is called to discuss the 
appointment or employment of specific employees and to 
discuss the selection of a person to fill the Board seat 
vacancy.   

 

Board Book Page 5



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – October 9, 2017 
Page 4 
 

 
[Return to Open Session -  Roll Call] 
 

19.   Approval of Candidate to Fill Board Vacancy as Discussed 
in Closed Session. 

 

20.   Approval of Human Resources Report as Discussed in 
Closed Session. 

168-171 

 
C. Other Business. 

 

 

D. Adjournment. 

 

Board Book Page 6



Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 

 
Regular Board Meeting No. 609 

Webb Hall, Room 081, Mattoon, IL 
September 11, 2017 

 
Minutes   

 
Call to Order. 
 
Chair Storm called the September 11, 2017, regular meeting of the Lake Land College Board 
of Trustees to order at 6:00 p.m. in Webb Hall, room 081, Mattoon.  
 
Roll Call. 

 
Trustees Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell; Ms. Ann Deters, Secretary; Mr. Bruce Owen; Ms. Doris 
Reynolds, Vice Chair; Mr. David Storm, Chair; Mr. Mike Sullivan and Mr. Charles Meaker, 
Student Trustee. 

 
Trustees Absent: Dr. Robert Luther. 

 
Others Present: Dr. Jonathan Bullock, President; Mr. Jon Althaus, Vice President for 
Academic Services; Mr. Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services; Ms. Jean Anne 
Grunloh, Senior Executive to the President; Dr. Jim Hull, Vice President for Workforce 
Solutions and Community Education; Dr. Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services; 
and members of the staff, community and media.    
 
Announcement. 
Chair Storm announced that the Board received a letter of resignation from Trustee Dr. Robert 
Luther effective with this meeting. He said the Board will now follow Board Policy 02.07, Filling 
of Vacancies, in order to select a new member to serve until the next election in April of 2019, 
and that those interested in serving on the Board should submit written materials to Board 
Secretary Ann Deters, C/O the Office of the President, by September 29, 2017, including: 
reason for seeking the appointment, qualifications, and experience in other areas which may 
enhance public policy or decision-making. Chair Storm asked Trustees if there were any other 
relevant materials the Board might request that applicants submit. There were no additional 
requests. Chair Storm said the Board will vote on the replacement at its October 9, 2017, 
meeting with the individual taking his or her seat on the Board at the November 13, 2017, 
Board meeting. He also said eligibility requirements to serve on the Board are U.S. citizenship, 

Board Book Page 7



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 2 of 13
 

18 years of age or older, a resident of Illinois for one year immediately preceding election, and 
a resident of Community College District No. 517 for one year immediately preceding election.  
  
Approval of Consent Items.  
 
Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Owen seconded to approve the following consent items:  
   

1. Approval of Minutes of August 14, 2017, Regular Meeting.  
2. Approval of Minutes of August 14, 2017, Closed Session. 
3. Approval of Agenda of September 11, 2017, Board of Trustees Meeting. 
4. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses.  

This information was reviewed by the Finance Committee and presented by College 
administration for approval with full assurance by management they were prepared 
in good faith to follow all applicable laws and Board policy. Summary and bills 
include: 

Education Fund $        419,282.79 

Building Fund $          44,796.39 
Site & Construction Fund $        172,844.85 

Bond & Interest Fund $                        - 

Auxiliary Services Fund $        114,732.32 
Restricted Purposes Fund $        187,369.06 

Working Cash Fund $                        - 

Audit Fund $                        - 
Liability Insurance Fund $              56,969.00 

Student Accts Receivables $          68,739.39 

Total $     1,064,733.80 
 

For details of bills refer to:                                            
http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm 

5. Destruction of Tape Recording of March 14, 2016, Closed Session. 
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Luther. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Hearing of Citizens, Faculty, and Staff.  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
Committee Reports. 
 

Board Book Page 8

http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 3 of 13
 

ICCTA/Legislative. 
 
Trustee Sullivan, committee chair, said deferred his report to President Bullock who recently 
attended an ICCTA meeting in Bloomington Normal. Dr. Bullock highlighted information he 
learned while at the ICCTA conference regarding community college enrollment challenges 
throughout the state.    
 
Resource & Development. 
 
Trustee Reynolds, committee chair, said the committee met recently to review items which will 
appear later in the agenda.  
 
Finance. 
 
Trustee Deters, committee chair, said the committee met recently to review items which will 
appear later in the agenda.  
 
Buildings & Site. 
 
Chair Storm said the committee had not met since the last regular Board meeting.  
 
Student Report. 
 
Student Trustee Meaker highlighted activities underway to train new members of the Student 
Government Association (SGA). He also highlighted information he learned from recently 
attending an ICCB-SAC conference in Springfield. He said various SAC representatives 
discussed concerns regarding freedom of speech issues and changes impacting DACA 
students.  
 
President’s Report. 
 
Dr. Bullock said: 
 

 The state has begun issuing Fiscal Year 2018 state funding. Lake Land has received 
two installment payments each for equalization funding and credit hour reimbursement.  

 Lake Land banners now grace light poles in the vicinity of the Mattoon train depot 
downtown and along Lake Land Boulevard. Thank you to the City of Mattoon, Lake 
Land College Foundation, Alumni Relations, Marketing and Public Relations 
Department and the College Print Shop for making this project come to life.  

 Lake Land College staff and students once again participated in the Farm Progress 
Show in Decatur. Our booth generated a great deal of activity and 968 contact cards 
were completed by prospective students, exceeding the 2015 record of 906 contact 
cards. Thank you to all the Laker family who made this event a success! 

 

Board Book Page 9



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 4 of 13
 

 
Business Items. 
 
Non-action Items. 
 
Faculty Focus on Advancing Student Success through Face-to-Face and Online 
Innovative Modality. 
 
Trustees heard a presentation from Ms. Andrea Bright, academic counselor, on Faculty Focus 
on Advancing Student Success through Face-to-Face and Online Innovative Modality. Ms. 
Bright highlighted how the program allows her students in the Strategies for Success (SFS 
101) course to transition as needed between face-to-face instruction or online instruction, 
depending upon each student’s needs and learning preferences.   
 
IPRF Member of the Year Award.   
 
Trustees learned the College was selected as the Illinois Public Risk Fund (IPRF) Member of 
the Year.  
 
Fall 2017 - 10th Day Enrollment Report.  
 
Trustees heard a presentation from Dr. Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services,                   
regarding the Fall 2017 – 10th Day Enrollment Report and discussed thoughts on strategies to 
grow enrollments. 
 
Annual Report on Special Tuition Waiver Requests. 
 
Trustees reviewed an annual report for special tuition waivers granted in FY 2017, including 
waivers related to the Business and Computer Contest; WYSE Academic Challenge; Miss Illinois 
2017; Adult Week Activities; and the Principals, Deans and Counselors meeting. 
 
Proposed Revisions to Policies in Sections 1 through 4 from Policy Manual Annual 
Review.  
 
Dr. Bullock said that the Cabinet has conducted a review of the Board Policy Manual in its 
entirety. Trustees reviewed a recommendation from Dr. Bullock for proposed revisions to 
numerous policies in sections 1, 2, 3, 4 and 8 including:  
 

o 01.05 
o 02.02 
o 02.08 
o 02.10 
o 02.12 
o 02.19 
o 03.07 

Board Book Page 10



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 5 of 13
 

o 03.12 
o 04.06 
o 08.01 
o 08.02 
o 08.03 
o 08.05 
o 08.06 

 
Trustees Reynolds said the Resource and Development Committee recently met for an in-depth 
review of the recommendations and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the Board 
approval of the revisions as presented.  
 
Dr. Bullock said recommended revisions were submitted as first reading and will be brought to 
the Board for action during the October regular Board meeting. He also said that additional 
policy revision recommendations for the remaining sections of the Policy Manual will be 
submitted at upcoming Board meetings to be held later in the year. 
 
Proposed Revisions to Board Policy 08.07 – Registration of Registered Sex Offenders.   
 
Trustees reviewed a recommendation from Ms. Jean Anne Grunloh, Senior Executive to the 
President, for proposed revisions to Board Policy 08.07 – Registration of Registered Sex 
Offenders. Dr. Bullock said that Board-approved revisions to this Policy in February 2012 were 
inadvertently not incorporated into the official Board Policy Manual at that time. Subsequently, 
in June 2014, the administration submitted recommended revisions to this same Policy to 
remove reference to the College’s Child Care Facility but cited the outdated Policy language. He 
requested that the Board reinstate the approved language from February 2012 which had been 
recommended to the College administration by counsel for the College’s compliance with the 
Illinois Sex Offender Registration Act. 
 
Trustees Reynolds said the Resource and Development Committee recently met for an in-
depth review of the recommendations and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to 

the Board approval of the revisions as presented.  
 
Dr. Bullock said recommended revisions were submitted as first reading and will be brought to 
the Board for action during the October regular Board meeting.  
 
Proposed Revisions to Board Policy 04.07 – College Spokesperson and 11.21 – 
Marketing Materials and Publications. 
 
Trustees reviewed a recommendation from Dr. Stovall for recommended revisions to the 
above two referenced policies. She said revisions for Policy 04.07 – College Spokesperson will 
clarify responsibilities for Marketing & Public Relations and expectations for all College staff in 
relation to media communications. Revisions to Board Policy 11.21 - Marketing Materials and 

Board Book Page 11



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 6 of 13
 

Publications will clarify responsibilities for Marketing & Public Relations and expectations for all 
College staff in relation to the College’s marketing and branding efforts. 
 
Dr. Stovall said recommended revisions were submitted as first reading and will be brought to 
the Board for action during the October regular Board meeting.  
 
Policy Revisions for Minor Corrections.  
 
Dr. Bullock informed Trustees of numerous policies in which minor revisions were recently 
made to correct grammatical errors, typos, or outdated information such as position title 
changes or department title changes. He said these minor revisions did not alter the original 
intent of the various policies and thus were made without Board approval. 
  
Calendar of Events. 
 
Trustees received a calendar of upcoming events. Chair Storm highlighted numerous activities 
scheduled for the 2nd Annual Homecoming Weekend.  
 
Correspondence.  
 
Trustees reviewed one item of correspondence. 
 
Action Items. 
 
Approval of Amended FY 2018 Budget.  
 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee recently met for an in-depth review of the 
Amended FY 2018 Budget and the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the Board 
approval of the Amended FY 2018 Budget as presented. 
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Sullivan seconded to approve the Amended FY 2018 
Operating Budget as presented. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Luther. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Acceptance of Reporting of July 2017 Financial Statements. 
 
Trustees reviewed the July 2017 Financial Statements and a memorandum from Mr. Bryan 
Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services, highlighting variances for the statements. This 
information also included corresponding monthly financial spreadsheets that include a 
summary of all operational expenditures (Funds 1 and 2).  

Board Book Page 12



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 7 of 13
 

 
Trustee Deters said the Finance Committee recently met for an in-depth review of the July 
2017 Financial Statements and that the Committee’s consensus was to recommend to the 
Board approval of the statements as presented.  
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve the July 2017 Financial 
Statements as presented. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Luther. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Acceptance of IPRF Safety Grant.  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Gleckler to accept the Illinois Public Risk Fund 
(IPRF) Safety Grant and Education Award.  
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Sullivan seconded to accept the Illinois Public Risk Fund 
(IPRF) Safety Grant and Education Award in the amount of $15,488. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Luther. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Special Tuition Waivers. 
 
Trustees reviewed a request by Dr. Bullock to approve special tuition waiver requests for five 
different events to be held in academic year 2018. Dr. Bullock said these events include the 
Business and Computer Contest; WYSE Academic Challenge; Miss Illinois 2018; Adult Week 
Activities; and the Principals, Deans and Counselors meeting.  
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Owen seconded to approve as presented special tuition 
waiver requests related to five separate upcoming events in FY 2018.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Luther. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
 
 

Board Book Page 13



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 8 of 13
 

 
Approval of Tort Document.  
 
Trustees reviewed a recommendation by Ms. Dustha Wahls, Director of Human Resources for 
approval of the proposed FY 2018 Tort Levy Expenditures/Risk Management. Mr. Gleckler 
said the proposed plan reflects unchanged rates from the FY 2017 plan.  
 
Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve as presented the FY 2018 
Tort Levy Expenditures/Risk Management Plan. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Luther. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Acceptance of Donation of Art Collection from Foundation.  
 
Trustees reviewed a recommendation from Ms. Jackie Joines, Executive Director for College 
Advancement, to accept a donation of an art collection from the College Foundation. Dr. 
Bullock said that through the College’s 50 year history there have been various donations of 
individual pieces of art work which the Foundation was tasked with maintaining for inventory 
purposes. Dr. Bullock said he concurs with Ms. Joines recommendation that the College 
accept this donation so that the various pieces of the art collection might be better utilized in 
classes and instructional settings.   
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Sullivan seconded to accept the in-kind donation of an 
art collection valued at approximately $18,000 from the Foundation.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Luther. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of IDOC Contracts for FY 2018. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Jim Hull, Vice President for Workforce Solutions 
and Community Education, to approve 17 contracts for educational services for 17 IDOC 
facilities for FY 2018. He said Lake Land currently provides educational services for 18 of the 
state’s adult correctional facilities and that the current contracts for services between the 
College and the Illinois Department of Corrections (IDOC) at 17 adult correctional facilities will 
expire on September 30, 2017.  Dr. Hull said the Board already approved the FY 2018 
educational services contract for Kewanee Life Skills Re-entry Center earlier this year. For the 
17 proposed contract renewals, Dr. Hull highlighted the standard language found in each 
contract as well overall expenditures, income and indirect costs.  

Board Book Page 14



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 9 of 13
 

 
Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve as presented 17 contracts 
for the College to provide educational services at 17 adult correctional facilities for the Illinois 
Department of Corrections (IDOC) for the period October 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, or 
for the remainder of FY 2018.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Luther. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Human Resources Report.  
 
Trustees reviewed the proposed Human Resources Report.  
 
Trustee Reynolds motioned and Trustee Owen seconded to approve the following Human 
Resources Report: 
 
The following employee has a family medical eligible event 
 
 Alford, Murray FMLA 08/21/2017-09/04/2017 
 
The following employee has a military leave event 
 
 Davis, Brian  09/03/2017 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
    Dundee, Wade Adjunct Reading Instructor 08/21/2017 
    Primary Position is Adj Faculty Humanities               
    Garretson, Deborah Print Shop Technician Assistant 08/15/2017 
    Primary Position is Mailroom Assistant                       
    Graham, Conner Tutor-Disability Services - Student 08/07/2017 
   Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst          
    Graham, Conner Tutor-Student Community Education 08/07/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Nzuka, Eunice Print Shop Student Assistant 08/16/2017 
    Primary Position is International Stu Ambassador             
    Ruff, David Adjunct Faculty Humanities Division 08/21/2017 
   Primary Position is Dual Credit Instructor                   
    Tegeler, Amber Tutor-Disability Services - Student 08/21/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Tegeler, Amber Tutor-Student Community Education 08/21/2017 

Board Book Page 15



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 10 of 13
 

   Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Thomas, Amelia Tutor-Disability Services - Bachelor 08/08/2017 
   Primary Position is Adj Faculty Math/Science                 
    Thomas, Amelia Tutor - Bachelor's Community Education 08/08/2017 
    Primary Position is Adj Faculty Math/Science                 
    Thomas, Amelia Tutor - Bachelor's Degree  08/08/2017 
    Primary Position is Adj Faculty Math/Science      
            
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Borntreger, Cody Perkins Student Worker - Business 08/28/2017 
   Primary Position is Admissions Student Assistant             
     
 Graham, Conner Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 08/07/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst              
    Hale, Aubrey Adult Education Instructor 08/08/2017 
    Primary Position is Alternative Education Instr              
    Larry, Julian Outreach Advisor/Mentor, TRIO 08/07/2017 
    Primary Position is Men's Basketball Assistant               
    Martin, Craig Adult Education Adjunct Faculty 08/08/2017 
    Primary Position is Adj Faculty Technology                   
    Patel, Palak Perkins Student Worker - Business 08/28/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Tegeler, Amber Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 08/21/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst              
  
End Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are ending their additional appointment 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Arney, Larry  Adjunct Faculty Business 12/30/2016 
    Howell, Jessica  Tutor 12/14/2016 
 
Part-time 
    Bonebrake, Kassidy  Groundskeeper 07/18/2017 
    Tingley, Joey  Adjunct Faculty Allied Health 08/01/2017 
  
New Hire-Employees 
  The following employees are recommended for hire 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Burden, Danielle Counseling Services Unpaid Intern 08/14/2017 
    Davis, Heather Work and Learn - Counseling 08/21/2017 
    Dunne, Sarita Work and Learn - Counseling 08/23/2017 
    Glennon, Kelly Dual Credit Instructor 08/17/2017 
    Haskins, Brian Dual Credit Instructor 08/31/2017 
    Meier, Laura Dual Credit Instructor 08/03/2017 

Board Book Page 16



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 11 of 13
 

    Ohnesorge, Collin Peer to Peer Assistant - Technology 08/21/2017 
    Penrod, Paul Dual Credit Instructor 08/17/2017 
    Richars, Mary Dual Credit Instructor 08/16/2017 
    Walk, Aaron Counseling Services Unpaid Intern 08/15/2017 
 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
    Crone, William Correctional Hort Instr-Jacksonville CC 08/14/2017 
    Fredrickson, Pennee Correctional Ofc Assistant-Hill CC 08/14/2017 
    Kesler, Lynndi Correctional Career Tech Instr-Big Muddy   08/15/2017 
 Hiland, Ronald Correctional Constr Occ Instr-Western IL  09/01/2017 
    Mason, Todd Correctional Horticulture Instr-Hill CC 08/21/2017 
    Morse, Crystal Correctional Comm Cooking Instr-IL River 08/15/2017 
    Pastor Rojop, Jennifer Correctional Ofc Assistant-Dixon CC 08/09/2017 
 Pearce, Clark Correctional Hort Instr - Taylorville CC 08/28/2017 
    Rios, Lisa Correctional Ofc Assistant-East Moline CC  08/22/2017 
    Risley, Kala Correctional Ofc Assistant-Southwester CC 08/23/2017 
    Scott, Garry Correctional Career Tech Instr-Dixon CC 08/14/2017 
    Volk, Amber Correctional Ofc Assistant-Lawrence CC 08/22/2017 
    Way, Chad Correctional Career Tech Instr-IL River CC 08/15/2017 
     
Part-time 
    Darimont, Lynn Adjunct Reading Instructor 08/21/2017 
    Deters, Timothy Physical Plant Assistant 07/31/2017 
    Dial, McKenzie Adjunct Faculty Humanities  08/21/2017 
    Donovan, Zoe Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 08/10/2017 
    Elam, Kasey Bookstore Rush Worker 08/14/2017 
    Enstrom, Patrick Adjunct Faculty Math and Science  08/21/2017 
    Gardner, Baylor Marketing and Public Relations Intern 08/21/2017 
    Graham, Conner Tutor - Student Learning Assistance 06/07/2017 
    Heicher, Rachel Adjunct Faculty Humanities  08/21/2017 
    Henderson, Corinne Library Assistant 08/07/2017 
    Kearney, James Adjunct Faculty Math and Science  08/21/2017 
    Long, Barry Adjunct Faculty Humanities 08/21/2017 
    Mahlmeister, Katherine Bookstore Rush Worker 08/16/2017 
    Mueller, Rebecca Library Assistant 08/07/2017 
    Pankey, Mackenzie Bookstore Rush Worker 08/16/2017 
    Schultz, Shyann Bookstore Rush Worker 08/15/2017 
    Stortzum, Justin Adjunct Faculty Humanities  08/21/2017 
    Tegeler, Amber Tutor - Student Learning Assistance 08/21/2017 
    Uphoff, Beulah Allied Health BNA Clinical Instructor  08/21/2017 
    Wallis, Tiffany Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 08/08/2017 
    Wallis, Tiffany Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 08/08/2017 
    Welker, Leah Adjunct Faculty Math and Science  08/21/2017 
    White, Barbara Bookstore Rush Worker 08/14/2017 
    Willenborg, Meghan Bookstore Rush Worker 08/16/2017 
    Wright, Diane Education Specialist 08/23/2017 

Board Book Page 17



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 12 of 13
 

 
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Crossland, Misti Adjunct DOC College Funded Instructor 08/15/2017 
    Dunnan, James Adjunct DOC College Funded Instructor 08/24/2017 
    Fitzgerald, Andrew Adult Education Adjunct Faculty 07/27/2017 
    Fleming, Shauna Outreach Advisor/Mentor, TRIO  08/07/2017 
    Miller, Chad Adult Education Instructor 08/15/2017 
    Perry, Dannie Alternative Education Instructor 08/14/2017 
 
College Work-study’s     
 McCombe, Joshua College Work Study - Business 08/24/2017 
    Mumaw, Shayla College Work Study - Business 08/30/2017 
    Vogel, David College Work Study - CCS 08/21/2017 
  
 
Terminations/Resignations 
  The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
 Hesseldenz, Amy Computer Programmer 09/15/2017 
    Iverson, Mary Corr Ofc Assistant-Sheridan CC 08/04/2017 
    Osborn, Jenny Mrktg Pub & Design Coordinator 08/25/2017 
    Pratscher, Valerie Associate Dean – Lawrence CC 08/31/2017 
 
 
Part-time 
    Camilo Junior, Alexandre Print Shop Student Asst 08/11/2017 
    Desouza, Nathalya Print Shop Student Asst 07/27/2017 
    Frank, Jacquelyn Adj Doc College Funded Instr 08/02/2017 
    Hall, Cassandra Tutor - Student Lrng Asst  05/03/2017 
 Hedges, Jennifer Financial Aid Outreach Coordinator 09/12/2017 
    Hillerby, Christopher Commercial Driver Trning Instr 08/04/2017 
    McClelland, Dillon Perkins Student Worker - Business 05/12/2017 
    Nead, Kristin Counseling - Clerical Worker 07/31/2017 
    Schley, Dennis IDOC CPR Instructor 08/15/2017 
    Stephens, Carolyn Adj Faculty Social Science 08/07/2017 
    Taylor, Lexie Counseling Serv Unpd Intern 05/13/2016 
    Temple, Dustin Physical Plant Assistant 07/06/2017 
    Voegel, Ginger Perkins Specialist 08/09/2017 
    Wright, Vicky Allied Health BNA Cln Instr 08/01/2017 
  
Transfers/Promotions 
  The following employees are recommended for a change in position 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
    Brown, Rex E-Commerce Specialist  09/01/2017 

Board Book Page 18



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 11, 2017 
Page 13 of 13
 

    Transferring From Print Shop Tech Asst 
Full-time 
    Cooper, Adrienne Marketing Digital Content Coordinator (FT) 09/12/2017 
  Transferring From:  Marktg Digital Content Specialist (PT) 
 
 Nelson, Megan Marketing Publication & Design Coordinator 09/12/2017 
  Transferring From:  Marktg Production Specialist 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustee Luther. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Other Business. (Non-action) 
 
Trustees discussed various ideas for the administration to consider for granting additional 
academic scholarships to potential students in the district to increase enrollments. 
 
Adjournment. 
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Sullivan seconded to adjourn the September 11, 2017, 
meeting of the Lake Land College Board of Trustees at 7:28 p.m.   
Motion carried with unanimous voice vote approval. 
 
Approved by: 
 
________________________                      __________________________ 
Mr. Dave Storm, Board Chair     Ms. Ann Deters Board Secretary

*Note – See Board of Trustees web page for any referenced attachments to these minutes.   
 https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/  
 

Board Book Page 19

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/


 
Lake Land College 

Board of Trustees 
District No. 517 

 
Special Board Meeting  

Webb Hall, Room 081, Mattoon, IL 
September 25, 2017 

 
Minutes   

 

 
Call to Order. 
 
Chairman Dave Storm called the September 25, 2017, special meeting of the Lake Land 
College Board of Trustees to order at 3:00 p.m. in Webb Hall, room 081, Mattoon. 
 
Chair Storm appointed Trustee Sullivan to serve as Secretary Pro Tem in the absence of 
Board Secretary Deters.  
 
Roll Call. 
 
Trustees Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell; Mr. Bruce Owen; Mr. David Storm, Chair; and Mr. Mike 
Sullivan.  
 
Trustees Absent: Ms. Ann Deters, Secretary; Ms. Doris Reynolds, Vice Chair; and Mr. 
Charles Meaker, Student Trustee. 
 
Others Present: Dr. Jonathan Bullock, President; Mr. Jon Althaus, Vice President for 
Academic Services; Mr. Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services; Ms. Jean Anne 
Grunloh, Senior Executive to the President; Dr. Jim Hull, Vice President for Workforce 
Solutions and Community Education; Dr. Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services; 
and members of the staff, community and media.  
 
Hearing of Citizens, Faculty, and Staff.  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
 
 

Board Book Page 20



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – September 25, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 
 

Approval of Early Adopter Sale Agreement for Purchase of Printer. (action) 
 
Trustees reviewed a memorandum from Mr. Dave Earp, Print and Mail Services Supervisor, 
regarding a recommendation for the purchase of an EFI Pro 24 F model flatbed printer from 
Electronics for Imaging, Inc. of Fremont, California, in the amount of $99,000. Trustees also 
reviewed details of the proposed Early Adopter Sale Agreement for this purchase. President 
Bullock, Mr. Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services, and Mr. Earp highlighted 
for Trustees the various reasons for their recommendations of this purchase including their 
analyses of a projected reduction in yearly labor costs for the Print Shop, projected reduction 
in yearly material expenses for the Print Shop, projected reduction in yearly ink costs, an 
estimated increase in expanded annual print services, potential savings for the College 
relevant to its way-finding initiatives, and an estimated return on investment for the purchase 
of the printer within three years. Dr. Bullock, Mr. Gleckler, and Mr. Earp also answered 
various questions by Trustees regarding the proposed purchase and related Early Adopter 
Sale Agreement.  Mr. Earp assured the Trustees that the proposed agreement for Board 
approval has been revised so that any required employee training on use of the new printer 
will be conducted on the College campus and that the College will not be required to have 
employees travel to California for training.  
 
Trustee Sullivan moved and Trustee Owen seconded to approve the Early Adopter Sale 
Agreement for purchase of a flatbed printer from Electronics for Imaging, Inc. of Fremont, CA, 
in the amount of $99,000 as presented. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Owen, Storm and Sullivan. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Deters and Reynolds and Student Trustee Meaker.  
Motion carried. 
 
Adjournment. 
 
Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Owen seconded to adjourn the September 25, 2017 
meeting of the Lake Land College Board of Trustees at 3:18 p.m.   
Motion carried with unanimous voice vote approval. 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
 
________________________                      __________________________ 
Mr. Dave Storm, Board Chair     Ms. Ann Deters, Board Secretary 
 
*Note – See Board of Trustees web page for any referenced attachments to these minutes.   
 https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/  

Board Book Page 21



 

 

 
American Heart Association recognizes Lake Land College for 
workplace health achievement 
 
Scientific, evidenced-based instrument rates, recognizes workplace health 
programs and workforce heart health 
 
(Mattoon, Illinois) – The 2017 results of the American Heart Association Workplace Health 
Achievement Index were announced today and Lake Land College achieved Silver level 
recognition for taking significant steps to build a culture of health in the workplace.  
 
The American Heart Association created the Index with its CEO Roundtable members, a 
leadership collaborative of more than 30 CEOs from some of America’s largest companies who 
are committed to applying evidence-based approaches to improve their employees’ overall 
health. The Index uses science-based best practices to evaluate the overall quality and 
comprehensiveness of their workplace health programs. A unique feature of the Index is that it 
calculates an average heart health score for employees of participating companies that securely 
submit aggregate health data. 
 
More than 800 companies completed the Index assessment this year and, of those companies, 
67% received either Gold, Silver, or Bronze recognition. Companies receive benchmarking 
reports, which allow them to identify potential areas of improvement so that they can advance 
their annual performance and recognition. 
 
The Association’s Workplace Health Achievement Index allows companies to measure the 
effectiveness of their workplace health programs, as well as the overall heart health of their 
employees. Unlike other existing organizational scorecards, the Index also scores companies 
on the heart health of their employees based on Life’s Simple 7® – the Association’s 
scientifically validated definition of ideal heart health. The American Heart Association’s 
Workplace Health Achievement Index assessment is grounded in data-driven science, and a 
quality improvement framework. According to the Nielsen 2016 Employee Health Survey, robust 
and comprehensive strategies for well-being are associated with positive impacts on employees’ 
health. 
 

### 
  

Board Book Page 22



 
About the American Heart Association  
The American Heart Association is devoted to saving people from heart disease and stroke – 
the two leading causes of death in the world. We team with millions of volunteers to fund 
innovative research, fight for stronger public health policies, and provide lifesaving tools and 
information to prevent and treat these diseases. The Dallas-based association is the nation’s 
oldest and largest voluntary organization dedicated to fighting heart disease and stroke. To 
learn more or to get involved, call 1-800-AHA-USA1, visit heart.org or call any of our offices 
around the country. Follow us on Facebook and Twitter. 
 
About the American Stroke Association 
The American Stroke Association is devoted to saving people from stroke – the No. 2 cause of 
death in the world and a leading cause of serious disability. We team with millions of volunteers 
to fund innovative research, fight for stronger public health policies, and provide lifesaving tools 
and information to prevent and treat stroke. The Dallas-based association officially launched in 
1998 as a division of the American Heart Association. To learn more or to get involved, call 1-
888-4STROKE or visit StrokeAssociation.org. Follow us on Facebook and Twitter. 
The American Heart Association/American Stroke Association receives funding mostly from 
individuals. Foundations and corporations donate as well, and fund specific programs and 
events. Strict policies are enforced to prevent these relationships from influencing the 
Association's science content. Financial information for the American Heart Association, 
including a list of contributions from pharmaceutical companies and device manufacturers, is 
available at http://www.heart.org/corporatefunding. 
 

 

Board Book Page 23



 

 

TO:  Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Lisa Shumard-Shelton, Director of New Student Admissions 

DATE: September 25, 2017 
 
RE:  2017-2018 Student Ambassadors 
 
CC:  Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services 
  Jon Van Dyke, Dean of Admission Services 

The 2017-2018 Student Ambassadors were selected in September after a very difficult process of 
reviewing 30 excellent applications. The interview committee was amazed by the amount of candidates 
who exemplify the Lake Land College Vision and Values.  
 
Fifteen high qualified candidates were selected to serve on the ambassador team as official 
representatives of Lake Land College for the year.  The 15 ambassadors will receive the $500 yearly 
scholarship. Listed below are the names, hometowns and majors for each student ambassador. I hope 
that the Board of Trustees and the Student Ambassadors will be able to meet in the near future. Thank 
you!  

 
Autumn Brandenburg, Casey, Pre-Med 
Maddie Caldwell, Elmwood, Ag Transfer 
Maddie Fugate, Mahomet, Ag Transfer 
Carson Goff, Hopedale, Ag Transfer 
Danelle Helton, Shelbyville, 
Sterling Howard, Windsor, 
Josiah Kinert, Lovington, Ag Transfer 
Lily Laatsch, Altamont, Pre-Engineering 
Karla Madden, Shiloh, Business 
Charles Meaker, Mattoon, Pre-Engineering 
Ashley Miller, Armington, Ag Transfer 
Tessa Philpot, St Elmo, 
Sidney Smith, Louisville, Social Work/Sociology 
Olivia Telgmann, Strasburg, Associate Degree Nursing 
Eric Wolff, Effingham, Ag Transfer 

Board Book Page 24



 

 

TO:  Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services 

DATE: September 25, 2017 
 
RE:  2017 Student Laureate Nomination 
 

Each year, every Illinois community college has the opportunity to nominate one outstanding student for the 
Illinois Community College Student Laureate Award from the Lincoln Academy of Illinois. Student Laureates are 
honored for their “leadership and service in the pursuit of the betterment of humanity and for overall excellence 
in curricular and extracurricular activities”.  

I am pleased to announce that the 2017 Lake Land College Student Laureate nominee will be Mr. Charles J. (CJ) 
Meaker. As a member of the Student Government Association, Student Ambassador and Student Trustee, CJ has 
demonstrated strong leadership and service to Lake Land College students and excellence in curricular and 
extracurricular activities. CJ is a great representative of the outstanding students we have at Lake Land College.  

Our nomination is submitted to the Illinois Community College Board staff who will select one nominee to 
represent the Illinois Community College System. The statewide winner will be recognized at a ceremony held at 
the Old State Capitol in Springfield on November 11, 2017. 

I would like to recognize CJ at the October meeting of the Board of Trustees. Thank you.  

 

Board Book Page 25



Board Book Page 26



Board Book Page 27



 

 

TO:  Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services 

DATE: September 25, 2017 
 
RE:  Proposed Revisions to Board Policy 07.12 – Talented Student Scholarships 
 

Attached are proposed revisions to Board Policy 07.12 – Talented Student Scholarships. The proposed revisions 
identify an SAT score for qualification for the Presidential Scholarship. This addition supports the recent decision 
by the Illinois State Board of Education to provide the SAT as the statewide college entrance examination.  We 
expect that all 2018 district public high school graduates will have an SAT score. The SAT score identified to 
qualify for the Presidential Scholarship is concordant with our current qualifying ACT score. 
 
Additional proposed revisions to Board Policy 07.12 seek to clarify fee waivers that are included in Livestock 
Judging and Athletic Scholarships and to recognize our compliance with the Junior College Livestock Judging 
Coaches Association, with whom we have been a member since its establishment in 1975.  
 
I would like to present the proposed revisions for first reading by the Board of Trustees at their meeting on 
October 9, 2017. 
 
Please note that Board Policy 07.12 requires that guidelines for administration of the Talented Student 
Scholarships are presented for approval to the Board of Trustees for three two-year cycles. Those guidelines 
have also been provided for inclusion in the Action Items section of the October 9, 2017, meeting of the Board 
of Trustees.  
 
I am happy to answer any questions you or board members may have regarding the Talented Student 
Scholarships. 

Board Book Page 28



 
Page 1 of 2 

07.12 
 
 

Talented Student Scholarships  
 

 

Talented Student Scholarships are awarded to graduating high school 
and G.E.D. students who have demonstrated outstanding achievements 
and who attend Lake Land College as full-time students. There are three 
Talented Student Scholarships: Presidential Scholarship, Livestock 
Judging Scholarship and Athletic Scholarship. 
 
The Presidential Scholarship is a tuition waiver scholarship awarded for a 
maximum of two consecutive calendar years to in-district high school 
graduates who have a class rank in the top 15%, or an ACT composite 
score of at least 26, or an SAT total score of at least 1240 .   
 
The Presidential Scholarship is awarded to G.E.D. recipients as follows: 
(1) to two G.E.D. recipients who participated in the College’s Pathways 
program for at least one semester and scored at the 85th percentile or 
above on the G.E.D. pretest, and (2) to two G.E.D. recipients who 
successfully completed the College G.E.D. program and scored at the 85th 
percentile or above on the G.E.D. test. 
 
The Livestock Judging Scholarship and the Athletic Scholarship are 
tuition and fee waivers (activity, course, and service/rec fee) awarded by 
Lake Land College coaches for a specific enrollment period to students 
who, in their judgment, have outstanding ability to perform on their team. 
Additional grants-in-aid may be awarded through the Athletics 
department. All tuition and fees for credit courses are waived except for 
late fees or special assessments and for any workbooks or materials used 
in class.   
 
The number and administration of theLivestock Judging and Athletic 
Scholarships are in accordance with the Junior College Livestock 
Coaches Association, National Junior College Athletic Association and 
the Lake Land College Board of Trustees guidelines.  
 

Board Book Page 29



  Board Policy               07.12 
 

 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Guidelines for the administration of Talented Student Scholarships are 
presented for approval to the Board of Trustees for three two-year cycles.  
The guidelines are available from the Office of the Vice President for 
Student Services.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised October 13, 2003 
Revised May 14, 2007 
Revised November 10, 2008 
Revised December 8, 2014 
Revised 
 

Board Book Page 30



 
*Regularly scheduled monthly Board dinners have been cancelled until further notice. 
 
______________ 
Revised 9/26/17 
 
 
 

Calendar of Events 
 
Monday, October 9, 2017 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb Hall 081* 
 
Tuesday, October 24, 2017 Lake Land College Foundation Annual Meeting 
 Mattoon Golf & Country Club 
 
Thursday, October 26, 2017 Fall Board Retreat 
 11:15 a.m. Lunch provided in West Conference room 072 
 12 Noon – 4:30 p.m. West Building Conference Rooms 119-120 
 
Thursday, November 9, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, November 13, 2017 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb Hall 081* 
 
Tuesday, December 5, 2017 Holiday Lunch for All Staff and Retirees 
 11 a.m. – Field House 
 
Thursday, December 7, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, December 11, 2017 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb Hall 081* 
 
Thursday, January 4, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, January 8, 2018 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb Hall 081* 
 
Thursday, February 8, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, February 12, 2018 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb Hall 081* 
 
Thursday, March 8, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, March 12, 2018 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb Hall 081* 
 
Thursday, April 5, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 

Board Book Page 31



 
*Regularly scheduled monthly Board dinners have been cancelled until further notice. 
 
______________ 
Revised 9/26/17 
 
 
 

 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, April 9, 2018 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb Hall 081* 
 
Thursday, April 12, 2018 4 – 5 p.m. Lake Land College Foundation Scholarship Reception 
 at the Field House 

5:30 p.m. Lake Land College Foundation Donor Recognition 
Reception at the Mattoon Golf & Country Club 
 

Thursday, May 10, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Friday, May 11, 2018 51st Annual Lake Land College Commencement Ceremony 
 5:30 p.m. Dinner in the West Building Atrium 
 7:30 p.m. Commencement Ceremony Field House  
 
Monday, May 14, 2018 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb Hall 081* 
 
Friday, May 18, 2018  11:30 a.m. Lake Land College Foundation Golf Classic 
 Meadowview Golf Course 
 
Thursday, June 7, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, June 11, 2018 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb Hall 081* 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 32



Board Book Page 33



 

 

Board of Trustees 

Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

October 3, 2017 

Revisions to Board Policies from Policy Manual Annual Review 

The College’s leadership team has conducted an annual review of the Board Policy Manual in its entirety. 
Due to the volume of policy changes, proposed revisions are being submitted as one agenda item for 
sections 1, 2, 3, 4, and 8 during the October Board meeting. Recommended revisions for policies in the 
remaining sections of the Policy Manual will be presented during the November and December regular 
Board meetings. Additionally, all proposed revisions for each section will be submitted to the Resource 
and Development Committee for review prior to submission to the Board.   

Please see below a list of the proposed policy revisions in sections 1, 2, 3, 4, and 8 that were submitted 
as first reading during the September 2017 Board meeting and reviewed by the Resource and 
Development Committee. Please also find attached details of the proposed revisions for each of these 
policies. It is respectfully requested the Board approve all proposed revisions as presented.  

Policy Number - Narrative for Revision(s) 

 
01.05 Clarifies that the College seeks appropriate national and regional accreditations 

and removes reference to specific organizations which may no longer have 
appropriately referenced titles.  

02.02 Clarifies when a new student trustee will begin serving his/her term to align the 
College's practices with the Illinois Community College Act.  

02.08 Specifies that the Board Chair, as ex officio of all Board Committees, shall have 
the right, as other members of the committee, to offer resolutions, to discuss 
questions, to vote thereon and to be counted as members physically present to 
constitute a quorum for meeting or voting purposes.  

02.10 Clarifies language related to expectations of confidentiality for trustees. 

Board Book Page 34



August 30, 2017 

Page 2 of 2 

02.12 Removes outdated reimbursement language and clarifies trustees will be 
reimbursed for their reasonable expenses per Policies 10.34 - Travel and 10.34.04 
- Meal Allowance.  

02.19 Clarifies that the Official Board Policy Manual is maintained on the Board of 
Trustees web page (Internet) and a separate hard-copy version will not be 
maintained. Also, clarifies that any Policy change will be made only after a majority 
vote by a quorum of the Board of Trustees.  

03.07 Deletes footnote and reference to portions of the Open Meetings Act as the policy 
language includes reference to the Open Meetings Act in its entirety. Also, deletes 
"charge-back report" and "approved committee meeting minutes" as items listed 
for inclusion in the Agenda/Board Book. These changes are justified by the facts 
that approved committee meeting minutes are posted to the College's website and 
it is no longer necessary to report on charge-back reports.    

03.12 Adds additional language to align with Open Meetings Act language regarding 
whether members were physically present or present by means of video or audio 
conference. This is relevant as members participating via any type of video or 
audio conference may not be counted in determining a quorum.  

04.06 Clarifies a member of the Cabinet may be appointed by the President to handle an 
emergency situation when the President is away from campus.  

08.01 Provides simplified instructions for any type of emergency, referencing a call to 
911 for responding to an emergency of any type. Appropriate instructions for 
Policies 08.03, 08.05 and 08.06 which provided varying directions depending upon 
the type of emergency (e.g. severe weather, police emergencies) will be 
incorporated in Policy 08.01.  

08.02 Clarifies separate reporting requirements for employee injuries versus injuries of 
students, visitors, etc.  Also, clarifies when completion of an incident report is 
required and who should complete it. 

08.03 Delete as appropriate language will be incorporated in Policy 08.01.  

08.05 Delete as appropriate language will be incorporated in Policy 08.01. 

08.06 Delete as appropriate language will be incorporated in Policy 08.01. 

 

Attachments 

Board Book Page 35



01.05 
 
 

Accreditations - National, Regional, and Professional  
 
 
 
The College is dedicated to developing and administering a high quality, 
balanced post-secondary education program and, therefore, seeks 
national and regional accreditation through the Higher Learning 
Commission (HLC) and additional program specific accreditations as 
outlined in the catalog and on the College’s website. by national and 
regional professional organizations, including but not limited to:  The 
Higher Learning Commission, Commission on Accreditation in Physical 
Therapy Education - American Physical Therapy Association; Council on 
Dental Education; American Dental Association; National League for 
Nursing; and National Automotive Technicians Education Foundation. 
 
Lake Land College is recognized by the Illinois Community College Board 
and the Illinois State Board of Higher Education as a Class I community 
college. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised May 12, 2014 
Revised  
  
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 36



 
Page 1 of 2 

02.02 

 
 

Student Trustee 
 

 

The Lake Land College Board of Trustees shall have one student member 
who is enrolled in Lake Land College.  The student member shall have all 
the privileges of membership, including the right to make and second 
motions, to attend closed sessions, to voice an advisory vote on action 
items, and to have this advisory vote recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting.1 
 
 1. Election of the Student Board Member 
 

The Student Board Member election shall be conducted by the Lake 
Land College Student Government Association at a campus-wide 
student referendum annually in March.  Candidates must, on the date 
of the election, be enrolled as full-time students and be citizens of the 
United States, residents of the State and the Lake Land College 
district, as specified in Board Policy and noted on their residency 
status in the Admissions and Records Office.  Once elected, the 
student trustee member must maintain a semester and cumulative 
2.00 grade point average or higher, continue to maintain full-time 
enrollment status for the fall and spring semester of his/her term, and 
should attend two Student Government Association meetings per 
month, preferably the meetings immediately before and after 
regularly scheduled Board of Trustees meetings.  Any student 
enrolled in the College during the time the election is held shall be 
eligible to vote in the secret ballot election.  If the elected member 
vacates the position for any reason, the successor will be selected by 
the elective process within thirty (30) days of Board of Trustees action 
on the vacancy. 

 
 2. Term of Office 
 

The College Board of Trustees shall approve the election and seat of 
the student member during the April Board meeting each year.  The 
student member shall then serve a term of one year beginning on 
April 15 of each year. 

 
 
 

Board Book Page 37



  Board Policy              02.02 
 

 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 110 ILCS 805/3-7.24 Illinois Public Community College Act 
 
 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised 
 
 

                                                 

Board Book Page 38



02.08 
 

Committees of the Board 
 

 

Standing committees of the Board of Trustees shall be Resource and 
Development, Buildings and Site, and Finance.  The Resource and 
Development Committee shall deal with issues related to personnel, 
faculty and staff training, curriculum, academic standards, technology, 
and articulation; the Buildings and Site Committee, with issues related to 
site development and utilization, the facilities master plan, and upkeep of 
property; and the Finance Committee, with issues related to budget, 
revenue, investments, audit, bills, bonding, purchasing, and State funding 
of community colleges.  The Chairperson of the Board of Trustees shall 
appoint and determine the number of members on the committees.  In 
addition, the Chairperson of the Board of Trustees shall appoint 
temporary committees comprised of less than the full membership for 
special purposes.  These committees shall be discharged upon the 
completion of their assignments.  The Chairperson of the Board of 
Trustees shall be an ex-officio member of all committees and shall have 
the right, as other members of the committee, to offer resolutions, to 
engage in discussion, to vote thereon and to be counted as members 
physically present to constitute a quorum for meeting or voting purposes. 
The Committee Chair shall also serve as the Committee Secretary and 
certify minutes according to the latest edition of Robert’s Rules of Order 
and the Open Meetings Act. A record of all transactions of Board 
committees will be recorded in official minutes, which are kept or caused 
to be kept by the Secretary as a permanent, official record of the College.  
The minutes shall follow the outline established by the Open meetings Act 
and Board Policy 03.12.  The recorded minutes will be approved by the 
committee membership at the next scheduled meeting, and minutes of 
closed sessions of committees shall be made available only after the 
Board of Trustees acts upon their release. 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised August 11, 2014 
Revised December 14, 2015 
Revised 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 39



02.10 
 
 

Ethics 
 
 
 
Ethics regarding the members of the Board of Trustees rests in the area 
of appropriateness of action.  Ethical questions arise frequently and 
should be dealt with based on the criteria that are best for the institution 
in accordance with the laws and regulations governing public officials.  
Trustees must have but one allegiance, that is to the institution and its 
mission.  Representing special constituencies dilutes trust and 
undermines the mission of the College.   
 
Matters of a confidential nature frequently arise at the meetings and in the 
Board’s relations with the College administration.  It is imperative that 
discussions and documents received by Trustees maintain a level of 
confidentiality with discussions and documents which might otherwise 
compromise a situation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised  
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 40



02.12 
 
 

Reimbursement for Expenses 
 
 
 
It is important and necessary for the welfare and governance of the 
College that members of the Board of Trustees engage in educational and 
development opportunities as well as serving as advocates for community 
colleges on local, state and national levels.  The Board of Trustees, 
however, recognizes that there must be a balance in meeting this need 
and the need for fiscal responsibility.  On an annual basis, the Board of 
Trustees should determine the priorities for representational needs of the 
institution and the level of funding available for expenses incurred in these 
activities. 
 
Members of the Board of Trustees shall serve without compensation but 
shall be reimbursed for their reasonable expenses incurred in connection 
with their service as members as outlined in Board Policies 10.34 and 
10.34.04.   
 
Members of the Board may charge telephone usage in connection with 
their service as members to a telephone credit card owned by the College 
or follow established reimbursement procedures of the institution. 
 
Reimbursement for transportation, lodging, meals, registration at events, 
tolls, and parking shall follow the travel and reimbursement policies for all 
employees enumerated in this manual.  Reimbursement for mileage will 
be at a rate established from time to time by the Board of Trustees.1 
 
 
__________________ 
1 110 ILCS 805/3-7 Illinois Public Community College Act 

 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised 

 
Page 1 of 1 

 
                                                 

Board Book Page 41



02.19 
 
 

Adoption, Review, Revision and Publication of Policies and 
Distribution of Policy Changes 

 

 

Recommendation for the adoption and revision of policies will come from 
the College President, who, in making his/her recommendation, presents 
the best evidence and judgment that he/she and the College staff can 
provide with regard to outcomes.  In making recommendations, the 
President should ensure that advice and counsel have been elicited from 
the Lake Land College community and the existing college-wide 
committees. 
 
Any policy made by the Board of Trustees may be suspended or changed 
by a majority vote of a quorum of the Board members in attendance, which 
vote will be taken by roll call and entered in the minutes of the meeting., 
except that any policy change made by a majority vote of less than four 
(4) members shall be subject to review at the next regular meeting of the 
Board.  Members absent at a meeting in which a policy change is made 
by fewer than four (4) votes shall be notified in writing of such action.1 
 
The entire and official Board pPolicy mManual will be maintained by the 
Office of the President and posted on the College’s websiteInternet.  After 
adoption by the Board and prior to the next succeeding Board meeting, 
the Executive Secretary to the Board of Trustees will enter policies on the 
College’s websiteInternet and ensure that appropriate changes are made. 
and that written copies of changes are distributed to the appropriate 
individuals.  The official written copy for the College will be kept in the 
President’s Office. 
 
 
 

1 110ILCs 805/3-11 Illinois Public Community College Act 
 
 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised September 13, 2004 
Revised 
 
Page 1 of 1 

                                                 

Board Book Page 42



 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 
03.07 

 
Agenda and Order of Business 

 

 

The President, in consultation with the Chairperson of the Board of 
Trustees, shall be responsible for preparing and transmitting to the 
members the agenda for each meeting of the Board.  The agenda book 
shall include, but not be limited to, bills for payment, minutes of previous 
meetings, financial reports, bids, contracts, special reports, resolutions, 
correspondence, and personnel report, charge-back report, and approved 
committee minutes.  If Board members wish an item to be placed on the 
agenda, the President or the Chairperson of the Board should be informed 
by the Monday preceding the Board meeting. 
 
Items must be listed on the meeting agenda before final action can be 
taken.  If an item comes forth after the meeting agenda has been posted 
and the topic is not specified on the agenda, the Board of Trustees may 
only discuss the item, not take final action.  If final action is desired, the 
Board is required to hold a special meeting with the items on the posted 
agenda or take action at the next Board meeting, only after the item is 
placed on the posted agenda. 
 
The agenda for each regular meeting of the Board must be posted on the 
College’s website, in the President’s office and at the location where the 
meeting will be held at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the 
holding of the meeting.  If the meeting is held in the Board Room at the 
College, the agenda must be posted on the bulletin board directly outside 
the door to the Board Room.1 
 
At all regular meetings of the Board of Trustees, the business shall be 
carried on in the following manner, with the understanding that an 
omnibus agenda with a consent motion is the prerogative of the Board of 
Trustees.  
 
 1. Call to Order. 
 2. Roll Call. 
 3. Approval of Previous Minutes. 
 4. Approval of Agenda and Addendums. 
 5. Approval of Bills and Warrants. 

Board Book Page 43



  Board Policy               03.07 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 6. Hearing of Citizens, Faculty and Staff. 
 7. Committee Reports. 
 8. Non-Action Items. 
 9. Action Items. 
 10. Other Business. 
 11. Adjournment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 5 ILCS 120/2.02(aA) Illinois Public Community College Act 
 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised May 13, 2002 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised May 8, 2017 
Revised 
 
 

                                                 

Board Book Page 44



 
Page 1 of 2 

 
03.12 

 
 

Minutes of the Meeting 
 

 

A record of all transactions of the open meetings of the Board of Trustees 
will be recorded in the official minutes, which are kept or caused to be 
kept by the Secretary as a permanent official record of the College.  The 
minutes shall include but not be limited to (1) the date, time and place of 
the meeting; (2) the members of the Board of Trustees present and absent 
and whether the members were physically present or present by means 
of video or audio conference; (3) a general description of all matters 
proposed, discussed and decided; (4) and a record of votes taken, 
including the name of the person who made the motion, the name of the 
person who seconded the motion, and the vote.  The minutes of the 
meetings shall be open to the public and made available for inspection 
within seven (7) days of the approval of such minutes.  There shall be no 
obligation to provide copies of the minutes unless requested through legal 
processes.1 
 
Minutes of closed sessions shall be available to the public only after the 
Board of Trustees determines that it is no longer necessary to protect the 
public interest or the privacy of any individual by keeping them 
confidential. Elected or appointed voting trustees have the right to access 
closed session minutes in accord with Public Act 99-0515.  
 
Minutes of closed sessions are subject to the same content requirements 
as minutes of open meetings.  The minutes must summarize the 
discussion.  This can be accomplished by indicating who introduced the 
matter and what he/she asked the Board to consider; it is not acceptable 
for the closed minutes to merely say, “The Board discussed [a specific 
matter].”  The recording secretary should try to capture the gist of the 
discussion and focus on the most important comments.  However, it is not 
required that every Board member’s comments be summarized.    
 
If so requested in the written minutes, any individual Board member voting 
against a proposition may state his/her reason and have it made part of 
the record.  
 
 
 

Board Book Page 45



  Board Policy 03.12 
 

 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/2.06 (a) 
 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised December 12, 2016 
Revised  

                                                 

Board Book Page 46



04.06 
 
 

Presidential Line of Responsibility 
 
 
 
If an emergency occurs when the President is away from campus, the 
Vice President in whose area an emergency is originating shall have 
primary responsibility for handling that emergency.  The President will 
designate one of the Vice Presidents or, in the absence of a Vice 
President, an administrator a Cabinet member to handle emergency 
procedures of his/her office during his/her absence from campus. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised  
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 47



08.01 
 
 

Fire Emergencies and DrillsResponding to Emergencies 
 
In any type of emergency situation, employees should call 911. The 
Campus Police Department and the appropriate administration officials 
will mitigate the emergency following the guidelines in the College’s 
Emergency Operations Plan which is reviewed annually and posted in 
the College’s shared drive. 
 
Employees are encouraged to periodically review the emergency flyers 
that are posted throughout campus for helpful information. 
 
In the event of a fire on campus, the nearest fire alarm should be pulled 
immediately by the person who first discovers the fire.  That person shall 
call 911 if it is safe to do so.  At the sound of the alarm, all persons must 
evacuate the building according to the following procedures: 
 
 1. Leave the building immediately at the sound of the alarm using the nearest exit. 
 
 2. Take your belongings with you but do not attempt to go to another part of the 

building. 
  
 3. Get as far away from the building as possible. 
 
 4. Do NOT block entrances, sidewalks, or roadways. 
 
 5. Follow the directions of the Lake Land College police officers or College 

officials. 
 
 6. Do not attempt to re-enter the building until a Lake Land College police officer, 

firefighter, or a College official gives the “all clear.” 
 
All fire drills will be coordinated between the College administration and 
the Lake Land College Police Department.  During fire drills, personnel 
should follow the same procedure as for fire emergencies.  It should 
NEVER be assumed that it is only a drill. 
 
Information pertaining to all false alarms should be reported to the Lake 
Land College Police Department, ext. 5432. 
 
 

Board Book Page 48



 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
Revised December 12, 2011 
Revised 
 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 49



 
Page 1 of 2 

08.02 

 
 

Medical Emergencies Incidents or Accidents 
 
 
 
In the event an employee is on the scene of a medical emergency, he/she 
should shall call 911 then follow the posted instructions in each building 
or on the shared drive online entitled “Emergency Preparedness Plan.”  
Emergency Procedures. Additional copies of these instructions may be 
obtained from Health Services.  
 
In the event an employee is on the scene of a medial incident involving 
injury that is not a medical emergency, the employee shall ask the injured 
person if he or she wants an ambulance called. If the injured person 
declines, the employee may render any treatment he or she is trained to 
perform and shall render any other reasonable assistance the injured 
person may need.  
 

Employee Incidents 
 
In the event an accident/incident occurs during the day involving a Lake 
Land College employee, the employee’s supervisor shall be notified as 
soon as possible. The supervisor shall ensure that the proper reporting is 
completed and forwarded to Human Resources.  
 

Incidents Involving All Other Individuals 
 

In the event an accident/incident occurs involving a  student or visitor at 
any Lake Land College facility, the injured person must contact Lake Land 
College Health Services, ext. 5276,  or the College Police Department as 
soon as possible.  An incident form and other appropriate paperwork must 
be completed. .  If the incident occurs after 5:00 p.m. on weekdays or 
weekends, it must be reported to Health Services on the next business 
day.  If an incident occurs at an off-campus site during the day or evening, 
the appropriate supervisor must be contacted. 
 
If the incident occurs on campus during the evening hours, the Lake Land 
College Police Department must be contacted at ext. 5432. 
 
In the event an employee, instructor or coach witnesses an incident, 
he/she must complete and submit an incident report to Health Services.  

Board Book Page 50



   Board Policy               08.02 
 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Any observations can be important in filing the appropriate forms.  
Although the incident may not appear to be serious at the time, it still must 
be reported.  Circumstances surrounding the incident may need to be 
investigated to prevent a recurrence. The incident report form may 
accessed online through the Health Services website.  
 
 
 
If an incident occurs at an off-campus site during the day or evening, the 
appropriate supervisor must be contacted.  If the incident requires medical 
attention and/or law enforcement response, the appropriate agency shall  
be contacted by the employee or supervisor in charge, e.g. Effingham 
Police Department, Effingham Fire and Rescue, or 911. 
 
Definitions 
 
 1. Life-ThreateningMedical Emergency 
 
  If the incident is life-threatening a medical emergency, 911 

shouldshall be notified immediately.   
 
  A life-threatening medical emergency incident includes, but is not 

limited to, the following: 
 
   A. Any incident in which the victim is rendered unconscious. 
 
   B. Any incident in which the victim has stopped breathing or is 

having difficulty breathing. 
 
   C. Any incident in which the victim does not display a pulse. 
 
   D. Any incident in which the victim is bleeding profusely. 
 
   E. Any incident in which the victim has suffered paralysis to any 

extent. 

Board Book Page 51



   Board Policy               08.02 
 
 
 

 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
   F. Any incident that requires treatment beyond the basic first-aid 

level of training.  
 
 2. Day Class or Evening Class 
 
  A day class shall be defined as any class that is completed prior to 

5:00 p.m.  An evening class shall be defined as any class that is 
completed after 5:00 p.m. 

 
 3. On-Campus or Off-Campus 
 
  An on-campus class shall be defined as any class that meets on the 

main campus located at 5001 Lake Land Boulevard, Mattoon, 
Illinois. All other classes shall be considered to be off-campus. 

 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
Revised December 12, 2011 
Revised 
 

Board Book Page 52



08.03 
 
 

Police Emergencies 
 
 
When a police emergency is identified, call 911.  The Lake land College 
Police Department shall decide if it is necessary to contact other law 
enforcement agencies and will make such notification. 
 
The Lake Land College Chief of Police shall coordinate all emergencies 
requiring an outside police agency.  The Lake Land College Chief of 
Police or his/her designee shall notify and inform the appropriate 
administrator of the College with details of the emergency.   
 
Nothing in the policy shall prohibit any person from contacting 911 in the 
event of an emergency.  An emergency includes, but is not limited to, 
incidents requiring immediate medical attention, fires, crimes in progress, 
or any other situation in which death, injury, or great bodily harm are 
threatened to any person if immediate emergency response is delayed. 
 
If an incident occurs at an off-campus site during the day or evening, the 
appropriate supervisor must be contacted. 
 
This Policy was deleted on (date). Please refer to Policy 08.01. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
Revised December 12, 2011 
Deleted 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 53



 
 
 

08.05 
 
 

Severe Weather/Tornado Warnings 
 
 
The Lake Land College Police Department shall monitor the emergency 
radio for any notification of severe weather.  In the event of a severe 
weather alert, the following notification procedure shall be followed by the 
Lake Land College Police Department: 
 
 1. Notify the Child Care Center. 
 
 2. Notify offices in temporary buildings. 
 
 3. Notify the Vice President for Business Services or the appropriate 

administrative official.  
 
 4. Notify the Director of Physical Plant Operations to ensure that 

proper safety precautions are taken. 
 
 5. If deemed appropriate, the College administration will order the 

activation of the emergency alert system and/or the NIMS team. 
 

 All building occupants should follow posted procedures for “SEVERE 
WEATHER.” 

 
If an incident occurs at an off-campus site during the day or evening, the 
appropriate supervisor must be contacted. 
 
 This Policy was deleted on (date). Please refer to Policy 08.01.  
 
 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
Revised December 12, 2011 
Deleted 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 54



08.06 
 
 

Other Emergencies 
 
 
All emergencies should be reported immediately by calling 911. 
 
Upon learning of an emergency on campus, the Lake Land College Police 
Department will report the emergency to the Office of the President or the 
administrator in charge of that area.  If an incident occurs at an off-campus 
site, the appropriate supervisor must be contacted. 
 
This Policy was deleted on (date). Please refer to Policy 08.01.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
Revised December 12, 2011 
Deleted  
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 55



 

 

Board of Trustees and  
Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

Jean Anne Grunloh, Senior Executive to the President 

August 29, 2017 

Revisions to Board Policy 08.07 – Registration of Registered Sex Offenders 

As part of the administration’s annual review of the Board Policy Manual in its entirety, we have  
discovered that Board-approved revisions to Policy 08.07 – Registration of Registered Sex Offenders 
from the February 13, 2012, Board meeting and July 14, 2014, Board meeting were inadvertently not 
incorporated into the official Board Policy Manual following these respective meetings. The Board-
approved language in February 2012 and July 2014 for this Policy detailed Sex Offender Registration 
procedures as well as the College’s policy on this issue. After recent review with College counsel 
regarding the Illinois Sex Offender Registration Act, 730 ILCS 150/1 et seq., as amended by Public Act 
97-0155 effective January 1, 2012, the administration has developed the Sex Offender Registration 
Procedures guide which is posted on the web page of the Campus Police and we are recommending 
Policy 08.07 reference these procedures and the College’s ongoing compliance with all relevant state 
and federal laws.  

Please find attached proposed revisions to Policy 08.07 which were submitted as first reading for Board 
consideration in September 2017. It is respectfully requested the Board approve the proposed changes 
as presented during the October 2017 Board meeting.    

Attachment 

Board Book Page 56



Page 1 of 2 

 
08.07 

 
 

Registration of Registered Sex Offenders 
 
 
 
Any sex offender shall, within thirty (30) days of his/her coming into any 
county in which he/she resides or is temporarily domiciled for more than 
thirty (30) days, register with the chief of police of the municipality in which 
he/she resides, or in the event no police chief exists or if he/she resides 
in an unincorporated area, he/she shall register with the sheriff of that 
county. Licensed day care centers are to be sent a list of offenders in their 
county.  
 
Therefore, the Lake Land College Police Department and the Director of 
the Child Care Center will maintain a list of registered sex offenders from 
all counties in the district served by the College. These lists will then be 
checked against adult contact with the child care center.  State statute 
prohibits the public inspection of this registration data;1 however, College 
personnel may direct persons to the online State Sex Offender Registry 
at the appropriate website. 
 
All registered sex offenders on campus, to include both students and 
employees, shall register with the Lake Land College Police Department 
within three days of the beginning of their enrollment or employment, as 
required by law.2  If the Police Department becomes aware of a student 
or employee who has not registered, they shall contact the person in 
question and advise him/her of his/her legal requirement to do so.  If the 
registered sex offender continues to be in noncompliance, he/she will be 
subject to arrest. 
 
If the person registering as a sex offender is classified as a child sex 
offender, he/she shall be given a letter outlining his/her legal 
responsibilities related to proximity of the Child Care Center.  A campus 
map highlighting the Center’s location shall also be provided. 
 
The Lake Land College Police Department shall direct individuals who 
inquire about the sex offender status of any student or employee to the 
State Sex Offender Registry. 
 
 
   

Board Book Page 57



  Board Policy               08.07 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Federal and state laws require a sex offender or sexual predator 
(hereinafter jointly referred to as “sex offender”) to take certain steps if he 
or she becomes enrolled in or employed at an institution of higher 
education.  The Illinois Sex Offender Registration Act, 730 ILCS 150/3, 
requires students and employees to register at the college or university 
which they attend or are employed. 

The purpose of this policy is to identify the College’s registration 

requirements for both employees and students who are convicted sex 
offenders who are required to register as such pursuant to the Illinois Sex 
Offender Registration Act, and to set forth the College’s policy for 

maintaining the sex offender registration data that is received by the 
College. 

Lake Land College will maintain and publish procedures implementing 
this policy which set forth: 

1. Requirements for Registration 
2. Maintenance of Registration Data 
3. Compliance and Penalties 
4. Public Inspection and Copying of Documents 
The procedures will be published in the Sex Offender Registration 
Procedures available online through the Lake Land College Police 
Department website. Printed copies will be available from the offices of 
Counseling Services, Health Services, Human Resources and Vice 
President for Student Services. 

________________ 
 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised March 8, 2004 
Revised December 12, 2011 
Revised February 13, 2012 
Revised June 9, 2014 
Revised July 14, 2014 
Revised 

 

 

                                                 

Board Book Page 58



 

 

MEMO 

TO: Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services 

DATE: September 28, 2017 

RE: Proposed revisions to Board Policies 04.07 and 11.21  
  

To support ongoing efforts to ensure that the Lake Land College brand is successfully and consistently 
represented in our marketing and communications efforts, proposed revisions to Board Policies 04.07 – 
College Spokesperson and 11.21 – Marketing Materials and Publications, as reviewed by the Cabinet, 
were submitted to the Board of Trustees for first reading at their September 11, 2017, meeting. I have not 
received any questions or recommendations since that meeting. I would like to present for approval at the 
October 9, 2017, meeting. 

Board Policy 04.07 – College Spokesperson 

The proposed revisions, including a title change to College Spokesperson and Media Communication, seek 
to address both the College spokesperson and media communications in one policy. (Media 
communication is currently addressed separately in Board Policy 11.21). The proposed revisions to Board 
Policy 04.07 now include media communication responsibilities for the office of Marketing & Public 
Relations and related expectations for other College staff. 

Board Policy 11.21 – Marketing Materials and Publications 

The proposed revisions, including a title change to Marketing and Branding, seeks to clarify expectations 
for all College staff related to the College’s marketing and branding commitments, recognizes that branding 
and marketing encompasses more than printed materials, and supports centralization and enforcement of 
branding standards through Marketing & Public Relations in accordance with the College’s published 
Branding, Graphics & Editorial Standards.  

The proposed revisions seek to clarify that the College’s Print Shop is to be used for all College printing 
needs. 

The proposed revisions include reference to Social Media Expectations and Guidelines.  Those guidelines, 
developed through best practice research conducted by Marketing & Public Relations staff and reviewed by 
the College’s legal counsel, were provided for review by Board members in their electronic resource files. 

I am happy to address any questions the Board may have regarding these proposed revisions. 

Thank you.  

Board Book Page 59



 
 

04.07 
 
 
 

College Spokesperson and Media Communication 
 
 
 
 

College Spokesperson 
The President is the chief spokesperson  to the public for matters affecting 
College operationsfor the College.  The President may authorize other 
personnel to serve as the college spokesperson or participate in media 
interviews. Individual decisions by faculty members or other staff members 
to release statements to the public are inappropriate.  The President may, 
however, at his/her discretion, authorize other personnel, such as the 
Director of Public Relations, to release statements concerning official 
College operations or policies. Employees should notify the Office of 
Public Relations if they are contacted by the news media regarding official 
business of the College, its programs, services, or events. 
 
Media Communication 
Marketing & Public Relations is responsible for communicating with the 
media regarding College news and requests for interviews, information, or 
story ideas. Staff shall not release news stories or communicate with the 
media directly without the approval of the Director of Marketing & Public 
Relations. Employees other than the President, Athletic Director or Head 
Coaches who are contacted by the media should direct the representative 
to Marketing & Public Relations.  
 
The Director of Marketing & Public Relations in consultation with the 
President will determine who will participate in a media interview.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 60



Page 1 of 2  

 

11.21 
 
 
 

Marketing and Branding Materials and Publications 
 

 
 

Sustaining a consistent Lake Land College brand is essential to the 
College’s success. Recognizing that all impressions of the college have 
the potential to affirm the College’s brand, employees will adhere to the 
following guidelines.  
 
College marketing, branding and social media platforms will be centralized 
and managed through Marketing & Public Relations (MPR). MPR will 
manage and enforce the college’s branding standards across all of Lake 
Land College, as well as work with commercial vendors. The printing of 
official College publications and marketing materials is to be coordinated 
and approved through Communications and Creative Services. The 
printing of the student newspaper is excluded. 

 

1. All marketing, recruitment and promotional pieces representing the 
College, faculty, staff, services and programs will be created or 
approved by Marketing & Public Relations in adherence to the 
Branding, Graphics, & Editorial Standards. Recognizing  the  
needs  of  offices  and  divisions  to  produce specialized 
marketing materials and recognizing that consistency of public   
image   is   represented   by   these   materials,   the 
Communications and Creative Services will collaborate with 
individuals to produce high-quality printed and electronic 
marketing materials prior to publishing and dissemination. 

 
2.  All college units will use the Print Shop for all College printing 

needs. Any need to print College materials at an off-campus printer 
will be determined by the Director of Marketing & Public Relations 
and the Print and Mail Services Supervisor.  

 

 

23. All employees will follow the guidelines as published in the 
College’s Branding, Graphics, & Editorial Standards, including the 
proper use of the College seal, wordmark, social/athletic logo, 
letterhead, email signature, business cards and nametags. The 
stationery of the College, including letterhead paper and 
envelopes and business cards, is intended for individual 
correspondence with persons and organizations outside the  

  

Board Book Page 61



Page 2 of 2  

Board Policy No.  11.21 
 
 

 College.  The ordering of the official stationery and the selection 
of the appropriate paper stock will be coordinated through 
Communications and Creative Services.   Individuals may not 
alter and/or add to the College stationery without prior approval 
from the Director of Communications and Creative Services. 

 

 

3. Release of news stories to the news media regarding Lake Land 
College programs, courses or activities is the responsibility of the 
Communications and Creative Services, which works with the 
members of the news media.  Separate offices or divisions shall 
not issue news releases. Individuals other than the President, 
Athletic Director or coaches who are contacted by the media 
should direct the representative to the Media Specialist or 
Communications and Creative Services.   Employees who are 
contacted by the media should contact the Media Specialist or 
Communications and Creative Services for assistance and 
interview  preparation  to  maintain  the  best  interests  of  the 
College. 

 
 
4. All employees will follow the guidelines in the Social Media 

Expectations and Guidelines. 
 

 

4.     The seal of the College represents the authority of the College at 
the highest level, which is vested in the Board of Trustees.    The 
seal will be reserved for official College records and business 
conducted by the President and/or Board of Trustees. 

 

 

5.     The College logo will be used as the official representation of the 
College in all marketing materials.   The specific guidelines for 
use are located on the College’s intranet and must be adhered to 
by College employees. All publications using the logo to be used 
on or off campus must be approved by Communications and 
Creative Services to maintain a high level of professionalism. 

 

 

Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised June 14, 2004 
Revised June 14, 2010 
Revised June 9, 2014 
Revised 

Board Book Page 62



 

 

TO:  Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services 

DATE: September 25, 2017 
 
RE:  Guidelines for the administration of Talented Student Scholarships 

 
In accordance with Board Policy 07.12 – Talented Student Scholarships, guidelines for the administration of Talented 
Student Scholarships are to be presented for approval to the Board of Trustees for three two-year cycles. The guidelines 
were last approved in November 2014. Attached are the guidelines for the next three two-year cycles: 2018-2020, 2019-
2021, and 2020-2022. Following is a summary of proposed changes to the guidelines: 
 
Athletic Scholarship- No changes are proposed for the next three two-year cycles.  
 
Livestock Judging Scholarship – The proposed revision indicates that scholarship recipients must maintain a 2.00 or higher 
cumulative grade point average (GPA) based only on those courses that count toward a degree or certificate. This change is 
in accordance with the Junior College Livestock Coaches Association minimum eligibility requirements for participation. 
Those requirements do not allow for consideration of a semester GPA or for grades earned in non-degree/certificate 
eligible courses to be included in the GPA.  
 
Presidential Scholarship – The proposed revisions include adding the qualifying SAT score as introduced in Board Policy 
07.12. The revisions also include increasing the minimum semester or cumulative GPA requirement to maintain the 
scholarship to be 3.25 or higher. This is in accordance with work the College has been doing over the past two years to build 
the Honors Experience for academically talented students. In the past year, both the Honors Program and the Phi Theta 
Kappa (PTK) Honors Society adopted 3.25 as their minimum GPA requirement for enrollment in honors courses and 
membership in PTK. Revising the minimum GPA expectations for the Presidential Scholarship so that it is consistent with 
PTK and the Honors Program will help better integrate the three major components of the Honors Experience.  We also 
believe it will be helpful for students in maintaining the scholarship to be expected to earn the same GPA every semester 
rather than allowing for a lower first semester GPA which then must increase during the second semester. 
 
It may be helpful to know that in considering the impact that the change in minimum GPA might have on future Presidential 
Scholars, we evaluated the impact that it would have had on our scholars for cohort years 2015-2016 and 2016-2017. In the 
2015-2016 cohort, 34 students lost the Presidential Scholarship during their first year because they did not meet the 
current minimum 3.0/3.15 GPA. If the minimum GPA had been 3.25 both semesters, 7 additional students would have been 
impacted. For the 2016-2017 cohort, 35 students lost the scholarship because they did not meet the current minimum GPA 
requirements. If the minimum GPA had been 3.25 both semesters, an additional 11 students would have been impacted.  
 
With your approval, I would like to present these proposed revisions to the Board of Trustees for approval at their October 
9, 2017, meeting. I am happy to provide additional information or answer any questions. Thank you! 
 

Board Book Page 63



 

 

ATHLETIC SCHOLARSHIP GUIDELINES 
 

Academic Years 2015-2016, 2016-2017, 2017-2018  2018-2020, 2019-2021, 2020-2022 
 
The Athletic Scholarship is a tuition/fee waiver scholarship awarded for a specific enrollment period.  The coach 
will inform the student of the number of semesters or terms covered by the scholarship. All awardees must 
maintain full-time student classification and successfully complete a minimum of twelve (12) credit hours each 
semester. Students who break their enrollment period by not meeting the minimum requirements for 
continuation may not be eligible for an extension.   
 
Tuition for credit courses will be waived as well as student activity fees, service fees (including textbook rental), 
and course fees.  Students will be required to pay any late fee charges or special assessments and for any 
workbooks or materials used in class.   
 
Scholarship recipients are recommended to complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA each 
year to help cover additional costs of college attendance. The Illinois Student Assistance Commission Monetary 
Award Program (MAP) and all other scholarships and awards earmarked for tuition only, including Lake Land 
College Foundation awards and chargebacks from out-of-district students, will be utilized before the Athletic 
Scholarship. 
 
In accordance with requirements established by the National Junior College Athletic Association (NJCAA), Athletic 
Scholarships will be awarded annually as follows: 

1. Each coach shall be responsible for awarding the scholarship in accordance with the guidelines 
established by the Lake Land College Board of Trustees and approval of the Athletic Director with final 
approval of the Vice President for Student Services.  

2. Athletic scholarship recipients must be members in good standing of their respective team and 
successfully complete a minimum of 12 semester hours each semester.  They must obtain a 1.75 grade 
point average the first semester or term and either a 2.00 semester grade point average or a 2.00 
cumulative grade point average every semester or term thereafter for all courses attempted (excluding 
pass/fail courses). 

3. The total number of full-year awards, or equivalent semesters or the number of in-district and out-of-
district scholarships will not vary from the approved guidelines as indicated below without approval by 
the College President.  Scholarships cannot be transferred to other sports.  Out-of-district scholarships 
may be used for in-district students, but not the reverse. 

Volleyball:  
 Total number of scholarships (new and continuing) – 14 
 Maximum number of out-of-district scholarships – 11 
 Minimum number of in-district scholarships - 3 
Men’s Basketball:  
 Total number of scholarships (new and continuing) – 15 
 Maximum number of out-of-district scholarships - 12 
 Minimum number of in-district scholarships – 3 
Women’s Basketball:  
 Total number of scholarships (new and continuing) – 15 
 Maximum number of out-of-district scholarships - 12 
 Minimum number of in-district scholarships – 3 
 

Board Book Page 64



 

2 

 

Softball: 
 Total number of scholarships (new and continuing) – 24 
 Maximum number of out-of-district scholarships - 18 
 Minimum number of in-district scholarships – 6 
Baseball  
 Total number of scholarships (new and continuing) – 24 
 Maximum number of out-of-district scholarships - 18 
 Minimum number of in-district scholarships – 6 
Cheer:  
 Total number of scholarships (new and continuing) – 8 
 Maximum number of out-of-district scholarships - 4 
 Minimum number of in-district scholarships – 4 

 
The Athletic Scholarship will be discontinued for students who do not meet the minimum requirements.  There is 
an appeal process through the Vice President for Student Services for students who are discontinued to earn 
their TSA back. Since Lake Land College’s criteria for the TSA program are more stringent than the NJCAA’s 
eligibility requirements, students may qualify to play under the NJCAA regulations but will be responsible for the 
payment of their tuition.   
 
Grants-in-Aid 
 
Another form of financial aid available to athletes is the grants-in-aid program.  The grants-in-aid program is 
awarded by the coaching staff as follows: 
 
Athletic grants-in-aid will be awarded through the Lake Land College Department of Athletics and administered 
through the Financial Aid Office and Business Office in accordance with current NJCAA policies and Lake Land 
College Board of Trustees guidelines with approval of the Athletic Director and Vice President for Student 
Services.  Grants-in-aid awards shall be from college budgeted funds, individual contributions to the Lake Land 
College Foundation designated for athletics or from team-raised revenues.  
 
Upon the coaching staff recommendation, the grants-in-aid program is available to any athlete regardless of 
geographic boundaries.  An athlete receiving grants-in-aid will be limited to a maximum of (a) tuition and fees; 
(b) room and board; (c) books and course-related materials; (d) transportation cost one time per academic year 
to and from the College by direct route in accordance with Article VIII, Section I of the NJCAA Handbook. 
 
Assistance to athletes above that specified as a full scholarship must be based on a certified need.  Under no 
circumstances may assistance to athletes exceed the amount of need established by a needs analysis system 
approved by the Department of Education, or the amount of a full scholarship, as described in Article VIII, 
Section I of the NJCAA Handbook, whichever is greater. 
 
Approved by the Lake Land College Board of Trustees: 
November 2008, November 2011, November 2014 
Pending: October 2017 

Board Book Page 65



LIVESTOCK JUDGING SCHOLARSHIP GUIDELINES 
 

Academic Years 2015-2016, 2016-2017, 2017-2018  2018-2020, 2019-2021, 2020-2022  
 
The Livestock Judging Scholarship is a tuition/fee waiver scholarship awarded for a specific enrollment period.  The 
coach will inform the student of the number of semesters or terms covered by the scholarship. All awardees must 
maintain full-time student classification and successfully complete a minimum of twelve (12) credit hours each 
semester. Students who break their enrollment period by not meeting the minimum requirements for continuation 
may not be eligible for an extension.   

 
Tuition for credit courses will be waived as well as student activity fees, service fees (including textbook rental), and 
course fees.  Students will be required to pay any late fee charges or special assessments and for any workbooks or 
materials used in class.   

 
Scholarship recipients are recommended to complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) each year 
to help cover additional costs of college attendance. The Illinois Student Assistance Commission Monetary Award 
Program (MAP) and all other scholarships and awards earmarked for tuition only, including Lake Land College 
Foundation awards and chargebacks from out-of-district students, will be utilized before the Livestock Judging 
Scholarship.   

 
In accordance with requirements established by the Junior College Livestock Coaches Association, Livestock Judging 
Scholarships will be awarded annually as follows: 
1.  The Livestock Judging team coach shall be responsible for awarding the scholarships in accordance with the 

guidelines established by the Lake Land College Board of Trustees and approval of the Division Chairperson for 
Agriculture with final approval of the Vice President for Student Services.   

2.   Livestock Judging Scholarship Recipients must be members in good standing on their team,  and successfully 
complete a minimum of 12 semester hours each semester, and maintain a.  They must obtain a 1.75 grade point 
average the first semester or term and either a 2.00 semester grade point average or a 2.00 or higher cumulative 
grade point average. every semester or term thereafter for all courses attempted (excluding pass/fail courses). 
Only degree/certificate-eligible courses are included in the GPA. 

3.   The total number of full-year scholarships or equivalent semesters or the number of in-district and out-of-district 
scholarships will not vary from the approved guidelines as indicated below without approval from the College 
President. Scholarships cannot be transferred to other sports. Out-of-district scholarships may be used for in-
district students, but not the reverse. 

 Total number of scholarships (new and continuing) – 22 
 Maximum number of out-of-district scholarships - 18 
 Minimum number of in-district scholarships – 4 
 
The Livestock Judging Scholarship will be discontinued for students who do not meet the minimum requirements.  
There is an appeal process through the Vice President for Student Services for discontinued students to re-earn the 
scholarship. 

 
Approved by the Lake Land College Board of Trustees: 
November 2008, November 2011; October 2012; November 2014  
Pending: October 2017 

Board Book Page 66



 

 

 
PRESIDENTIAL SCHOLARSHIP GUIDELINES 

 
Academic Years 2015-2016, 2016-2017, 2017-2018 2018-2020, 2019-2021, 2020-2022 

 
The Presidential Scholarship is a tuition waiver scholarship awarded for a maximum of two consecutive calendar 
years beginning with fall semester as the first enrollment period.  Students who break their enrollment either by 
not meeting the minimum requirements for continuation or not completing their academic program in two 
years will not be eligible for an extension.  All awardees must maintain full-time student classification and 
successfully complete a minimum of twelve (12) credit hours each semester. 
 
Tuition for credit courses will be waived. Students will be required to pay the activity fees, service fees (including 
textbook rental), required course fees and for any materials or workbooks used in class.  For eligible students, 
MAP awards will be applied toward fees. 
 
Students are encouraged to complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) each year to help 
cover additional costs of attendance. The Illinois Student Assistance Commission Monetary Award Program and 
all other scholarships and awards earmarked for tuition only, including Lake Land College Foundation awards 
and chargebacks from out-of-district students, will be utilized before the Presidential Scholarship.   
 
Presidential Scholarships will be awarded as follows: 
 
Eligible students, include those who at the time of high school graduation, 1) reside in Lake Land College District 
517,  2) graduate from a high school located in Lake Land College District 517, or 3) graduate from a high school 
serving a portion of Lake Land College District 517, including Hume-Shiloh, South Central, Newton, and North 
Clay high schools. 

1. Each graduate must meet one of the following conditions; 1) seventh or eighth semester grade point 
average at or above the 85th percentile, or (2) ACT composite score of at least 26 or (3) an SAT total 
score of at least 1240 .  The high school will verify the students’ academic qualifications and the Vice 
President of Student Services will be the final approval for Lake Land. 

2. The student must enroll at Lake Land College full-time the fall semester immediately following high 
school graduation.  

3. Presidential Scholarship recipients must complete a minimum of 12 semester hours each college 
semester and .  They must obtain a 3.00 grade point average the first semester or term and either a 3.15 
earn a semester or cumulative grade point average of 3.25 or higher or a 3.15 cumulative grade point 
average every semester or term thereafter for all courses attempted (excluding pass/fail courses) each 
semester. 

                
The Presidential Scholarship will be discontinued for students who do not meet the minimum requirements. 
There is an appeal process through the Vice President for Student Services for discontinued students to re-earn 
the scholarship.   
 
Reviewed by Lake Land College Board of Trustees:   
November 2008,  November 2011, November 2014 (Adapted from previous Academic Talented Student Award) 
Pending October 2017 

Board Book Page 67



Board Book Page 68



Board Book Page 69



Board Book Page 70



Board Book Page 71



Board Book Page 72



Board Book Page 73



Board Book Page 74



Board Book Page 75



Board Book Page 76



2017 Ford Fusion Hybrid Platinum Purchase

Color Current Mileage Vehicle Cost Dealer In‐Kind Donation Final Cost Final Cost/Month  

Black
10

*2018 New Order
Not Supplied $0 $866.04

Burgundy Velvet 1,500                         $33,621.74 $500 $28,216.74
$818.41 at 
2.99%

 

Silver Metallic
15,500

*2017 Ford Fusion 
Hybrid Titanium

$22,744 $500 $17,339
$502.91 at 
2.99%

 

BID DATE:   September 29, 2017 ‐ 2:00 PM
Project No. 2017‐011

            BID TABULATION
5001 Lake Land Boulevard

Mattoon, Illinois 61938

*Does not meet bid requirements

Dan Pilson Auto Centers #2
Mattoon, Illinois

Dan Pilson Auto Centers #1
Mattoon, Illinois

CONTRACTOR

Jackson Ford
Decatur, Illinois

Board Book Page 77



Board Book Page 78



Page 1 of 1 
 

Lake Land College  
Board of Trustees 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER:  1017-003                                              DATE:  10/9/17 
 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO CONTINUE THE FOUNDATION TAX LEVY 
 

WHEREAS, HB1484 authorizes the board of a community college district to levy an 
additional tax upon the taxable property of the district in any year in which the State 
Board issues a certificate of eligibility to do so; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Community College Board has certified that Lake Land 

College is authorized a 29.62 cents per $100 of equalized assessed valuation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lake Land College Board of Trustees intends to continue the levy 

of an additional tax as authorized by HB1484; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Trustees of Community 

College District No. 517, Counties of Christian, Clark, Clay, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, 
Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie, and Shelby, 
and the State of Illinois, intends to increase the levy by 12.12 cents per $100 of equalized 
assessed valuation to 29.62 cents per $100 of equalized assessed valuation as certified by 
the Illinois Community College Board, effective for the 2017 tax year. 
 
 Adopted this 9th day of October, 2017 by the following vote:  
 
 AYES:   
  
 NAYS:  
 
 ABSENT: 
 

 
Board Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
      
Board Secretary     Seal:  

Board Book Page 79



SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE 

 

 I, Ann Deters, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting 

Secretary of the Board of Trustees of Lake Land College, Community College District No. 517, 

Counties of Christian, Clark, Clay, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, 

Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie, and Shelby, State of Illinois, (the “College 

District”) and as such official, I am the keeper of the records and files of the Board of Trustees of 

said College District. 

 I do further certify that the foregoing Resolution of Intent to Continue the Foundation 

Tax Levy, is a true, correct and complete copy of that Resolution as adopted by the Board of 

Trustees of the College District at a meeting held on the 9th day of October, 2017. 

 

 I do further certify that the deliberations of the members of the Board of Trustees on the 

adoption of the Resolution were taken openly; that the vote on the adoption of the Resolution 

was taken openly; that the meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the 

public; that notice of the meeting was duly given to all newspapers, radio or television stations, 

and other news media requesting notice; and that the meeting was called and held in strict 

compliance with the provisions of the Illinois Open Meetings Act, as amended, and the 

applicable provisions of the Public Community College Act of the State of Illinois, and that this 

Board of Trustees has complied with all of the applicable provisions of said Acts and with all the 

procedural rules of the Board of Trustees. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature, this ___ day of ________, 

2017. 

      _________________________________ 
      Secretary, Board of Trustees 
 

Board Book Page 80



 

 

Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services 

September 28, 2017 

Student Government Elections 

On September 13 and 14, 2017, the Student Government Association (SGA) conducted an election for the 2017-
2018 freshman members for the Student Government Association. Lake Land College students were informed about 
the election through the Laker HUB, printed flyers distributed throughout campus, announcements in classes, WLKL 
radio announcements, and on the College’s Facebook page. 91 students participated in the election.  

The list below identifies the students elected to the SGA. Official election results are attached to present for 
certification at the October meeting of the Board of Trustees. Please contact me if you have questions. Thank you. 
 

Macy Davidson   Casey, Pre-Medicine 
Taylor Davidson  Marshall, Speech Pathology 
Christian Dolan  Herrick, Accounting 
Grace Mauck  Sullivan, Spanish Education 
Grace Zeller  Effingham, Major Undeclared 
Mazi Walker  Winchester, Agriculture 
Grace Goddard  Sandwich, Business Administration 
Jodie Harris  Windsor, Radio and TV 

 
Judges certifying the election: 
Brock Hammond, President, Student Government Association 
Charles Meaker, Student Trustee 
Valerie Lynch, Director of Student Life 

Board Book Page 81



Board Book Page 82



Board Book Page 83



Board Book Page 84



 
1

 
Lake Land College 

Facilities Master Plan 
October 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees 
Gary Cadwell 
Ann Deters 
Bruce Owen 

Doris Reynolds 
David Storm 

Mike Sullivan 
Charles Meaker, Student Trustee 

 
Josh Bullock, President 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Community College District Number 517 
Mattoon, Illinois

Board Book Page 85



 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 

Lake Land Community College Contact for Further 
Information 

 

Community College District Lake Land College 51701  

Submitted for Approval  

Master Plan Contact Person Bryan Gleckler 

Telephone Number 217.234.5224 

 

 

Board Book Page 86



 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan  

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Board Book Page 87



Table of Contents 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan  

Introduction ..................................................................................................................... i 

Campus History ............................................................................................................. 1 

Recommendations  ...................................................................................................... 36 

Initiatives    

Way-Finding and Campus Identity ................................................................................. 42 

Infrastructure Improvements  ......................................................................................... 44 

Rural Development Technology Center ......................................................................... 47 

Other Capital Projects  ................................................................................................... 48 

Work in Progress ........................................................................................................... 49 

Appendices .................................................................................................................. 51 

 

Board Book Page 88



Table of Contents 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan i 

Purpose 

The function of this Lake Land College 

Facilities Master Plan is to examine the 

condition of the College’s current 

facilities, to determine the course best 

for sustaining and improving those 

facilities and to create a plan to address 

all issues identified in the process.  

Illustrations in this Master Plan are 

representations only. Forms indicating 

particular buildings are schematic in 

nature intended to represent 

approximate scale and adjacencies. 

Specific facility configuration and 

location will be determined when any 

subsequent project is fully funded.  

It is not the purpose of this report to 

determine need for any singular facility 

or alteration.  

The Planning Process 

At Lake Land College, curriculum needs 

and changes are determined by the 

Lake Land College Administration and 

Curriculum Committee. The committee 

is made up of division chairs, faculty, 

student services staff and administrators 

and is chaired by the Vice President for 

Academic Services. New courses and 

curricula are proposed by this 

committee to the Board of Trustees and 

submitted to the Illinois Community 

College Board (ICCB) upon approval. 

Changes and discontinuation of courses 

Board Book Page 89



Table of Contents 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan ii 

and curricula are brought to this 

committee as well. 

It is the task of the Physical Plant to take 

the recommendations of the 

Administration and Board of Trustees’ 

Buildings and Site Committee and 

develop a comprehensive plan to 

renovate existing space, or to program, 

site, and build the required facilities. 

The development, planning and funding 

process is a lengthy process which can 

take several years to complete. It is 

therefore necessary to begin planning 

appropriate space for all facility requests 

as soon as those requests are made.  

To undertake the ongoing stewardship 

of the College’s current physical assets 

and to ensure the effective use of future 

funding for capital projects, it is essential 

to create a comprehensive plan which 

examines and understands the realities 

of the existing campus as well as 

considers the future possibilities and 

anticipates how they affect one another. 

The future holds many changes for the 

campus. Curriculum changes, 

technology changes and instruction 

delivery method changes will drive the 

need to develop and repair our facilities 

and infrastructures. To help understand 

how to accommodate those changes it 

was necessary to conduct a study of 

current conditions. 

The College conducted a wide-ranging 

study of the campus. Items in the study 

included documentation of precise limits 

of the College’s campus property, an 

examination of existing facilities 

including architectural, electrical and 

mechanical system reviews, a campus-

wide infrastructure analysis and a 

complete topographic study. Many other 

aspects of the physical campus were 

also reviewed. 

A thorough review of all collected data 

was conducted and a final plan was 

determined and recommendations 

made. These assessments and 

recommendations are reviewed and 

discussed in the following sections.

Board Book Page 90



Table of Contents 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan iii 

 

In 2008 the College took the first big 

leap into the utilization of renewable 

energy resources with the installation of 

a campus wide geothermal 

diversification loop and a 140 well 

geothermal field. Geothermal systems 

use the earth as a source of heat in the 

winter and as a heat sink for heat 

displacement from the building spaces 

in the summer providing cooling. These 

highly efficient systems will typically 

operate with 40-70% less energy and 

offer maintenance savings of 

approximately 30% (the individual heat 

pump units have a closed refrigeration 

mechanism that only requires filter 

changing to maintain).  

The Power Plant was retrofitted to 

accommodate the new 12” tempered 

water loop with the installation of new 

pumps and heat recovery units. A 12” 

underground water loop was installed 

around the main campus with four well 

fields – last one completed in 2014.  

To accommodate these changes 

additional items were completed in the 

College’s Power Plant including: 

Provision of a bypass so the cooling 

tower can be used to supplement the 

cooling capacity of the geothermal 

system should it be necessary.

Board Book Page 91



Table of Contents 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan iv 

Installed equipment and piping to allow 

the use of three of the existing boilers to 

supplement heating capacity should it 

be necessary. 

Provision of an internet based control 

system for the monitoring electrical 

power consumption, to be used in 

determining power reduction throughout 

the life of the geothermal system. 

Provision of controls as required for the 

monitoring and running of the new 

geothermal equipment. 

The geothermal system, which can 

provide simultaneous heating and 

cooling as needed, is a vast 

improvement over the College’s former 

two pipe conditioned water system 

which could only supply hot or cold 

water depending on the season. With 

the two pipe system there was a 

transition period at the change of 

seasons, which may have lasted from 

several days to several weeks, where 

neither heating nor cooling was 

available regardless of the weather.  

To date ten buildings have been 

connected to the diversification loop. 

The resulting energy savings has been 

substantial. 

 

Board Book Page 92



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 1 

History 101 

The campus of Lake Land College is 

located at 5001 Lake Land Boulevard, 

south of the interchange at interstate 57. 

On September 24, 1966, voters in 13 

school districts voted to create a 

community college district in East 

Central Illinois. The thirteen original 

school districts were joined in 

subsequent years by many others 

ultimately creating the second largest 

community college district in Illinois with 

a total area of 4,000 square miles. 

A total of eleven (11) sites were 

proposed, and after careful evaluation, 

the site committee recommended a 304-

acre site at the southern edge of the city 

limits of Mattoon near Interstate 57. 

Since all of the College's students would 

be commuting to campus, trustees felt 

this location near the interstate was the 

most desirable of the choices. Trustees 

found the site to be more than adequate 

for construction of the campus and 

unanimously approved the location. The 

site also provided acreage for nature 

preserves and demonstration farms. 

The site is geologically located at the 

south edge of the Wisconsin glaciation 

and extends into the Shelbyville moraine 

at the north edge of the Illinois 

glaciation. 

Shaver and Company of Michigan City, 

Indiana, developed the first College 

master plan which was implemented 

beginning in 1968 by Shaver and 

Company and Phillips Swager 

Associates. In 1969, as construction of 

the first phase was nearing completion, 

Shaver and Company and Phillips 

Swager Associates produced plans for 

the second phase of development that 

was completed in 1972. Phillips Swager 

Associates completed the third phase by 

in 1977. 

Subsequent land acquisitions have 

brought the College’s total land holdings 

to nearly 317 acres. This acreage 

houses the College, which is comprised 

of twenty permanent structures, eight 

ancillary buildings, two ponds, parking 

for nearly 2,200 vehicles and a 175 acre 

Agriculture Land Laboratory. 

Board Book Page 93



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 2 

 

Figure 1 – Aerial Photo (2015) 

Board Book Page 94



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 3 

Campus Development

The following pages explain the phases 

in which the campus was developed. 

Development Phase One 

 

Figure 2 - Campus Development - Phase I

Board Book Page 95



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 4 

 
Figure 1 - Virgil H. Judge Learning Resource 

Center 

Virgil H. Judge Learning 
Resource Center 

The JLRC serves as the “hub” of the 

campus with the other buildings 

attaching to its “spokes” via a concrete 

canopy. It was constructed in the initial 

phase of the campus construction in 

1969. 30,592 GSF is provided on a 

lower level, first floor and mezzanine in 

a concrete and steel-framed structure. 

When the building was constructed 

heating and air conditioning were 

supplied to the lower level with 

classroom unit ventilators connected to 

the campus conditioned water loop. The 

bulk of the first floor and mezzanine 

levels were conditioned by air supply 

units located in a central mechanical 

room above the mezzanine, which also 

was supplied with tempered water from 

the campus diversification loop.  

Many ceiling areas were treated with 

sprayed-on acoustical material which 

has been shown to contain asbestos.  

The roof on the LRC is a single-ply 

Chlorosulfonated Polyethylene (CSPE) 

membrane installed in 2001 and has a 

15 year warranty which is now expired. 

In 2011 the JLRC, was fully renovated. 

All old heating and air conditioning 

equipment was removed and replaced 

with a new more efficient geothermal 

heat pump system and connected to the 

new campus geothermal loop.  

Galvanized water piping throughout the 

building was replaced with copper 

piping, and all lighting was updated with 

more efficient fixtures and lamps. The 

local Building Automation System (BAS) 

devices were updated and connected to 

the campus wide BAS which can be 

controlled virtually anywhere via a web 

browser. Both fire alarm systems and 

door security systems were installed.

Board Book Page 96



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 5 

All ceilings and pipe insulation 

containing asbestos were properly 

removed prior to renovations. 

Remaining ceiling construction in areas 

where asbestos abatement was 

completed were removed and new lay in 

ceilings, energy efficient lighting, 

mechanical equipment, and carpeting 

and new paint were provided. Asbestos 

has been completely removed from the 

JLRC. 

Webb Hall (formerly the 
Southeast Building) and the 
Northeast Building 

Two of the three original classroom 

buildings on campus were built in the 

initial phase (1971) of the campus, they 

are all very similar in appearance, 

construction and mechanical and 

electrical systems, Webb Hall and the 

Northeast Building each contain 29,221 

GSF and house classrooms, 

laboratories and offices. See exhibit #1 

below. Both buildings are masonry, 

concrete and steel-framed structures 

with a single floor on grade. 

Webb Hall is home to our Business 

programs, Financial Aid, and Tutoring 

and Testing Center, and Northeast 

houses Math, Science and Social 

Sciences. 

The original construction provided 

chilled and hot water to air supply units 

in the mechanical mezzanines, (two in 

each building), which in turn supplied 

conditioned air to the laboratory and 

student lounge areas of the buildings. 

Individual classroom unit ventilators and 

cooling-heating units conditioned the air 

in all the classrooms and offices. Unit 

heaters tempered the air in each of the 

vestibules. With these systems over 30 

years old, they had reached the end of 

their service life and were grossly 

inefficient.  

The center of the circular Webb Hall and 

Northeast Building was open courtyards 

which over the years had become 

overgrown with weeds and vegetation 

due largely to the difficulty of delivering 

maintenance equipment to these areas. 

The circular courtyards were filled-in 

with permanent construction in 1996 

and 1997, respectively, increasing the 

buildings’ gross square footage by 5,026 

Board Book Page 97



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 6 

sq. ft. The new interior spaces provided 

needed additional classrooms, 

restrooms, offices and conference 

rooms. 

Webb Hall and the Northeast Building 

were fully renovated in 2012 and 2013, 

respectively. All old heating and air 

conditioning equipment was removed 

and replaced with a new more efficient 

geothermal heat pump system and tied 

into new campus geothermal loop. 

Galvanized water piping throughout the 

building was replaced with copper 

piping, and all lighting was updated with 

more efficient fixtures and lamps. The 

BAS devices were updated and 

connected to the campus wide BAS. 

Both fire alarm systems and door 

security systems were installed. 

All ceilings and pipe insulation 

containing asbestos were properly 

removed prior to renovations. Asbestos 

has been completely removed from the 

Webb Hall and the Northeast Building. 

Remaining ceiling construction in areas 

where asbestos abatement was 

completed were removed and new lay in 

ceilings, energy efficient lighting, 

mechanical equipment, and new 

carpeting, and paint were provided.  

The roof on Webb Hall above the 

classroom areas was last replaced in 

2011 and the warranty will expire in 

2031.  The roof of the Northeast 

Classroom Building was replaced in 

2012 and the warranty will expire in 

2032. 

Power Plant 

The Power Plant Building was 

constructed during the initial phase of 

the campus construction in 1969. Within 

this single-story masonry and steel-

framed structure was the central heating 

and cooling equipment which served the 

permanent campus buildings. The 5,300 

GSF of building contained boilers, 

chillers and many pumps. Two cooling 

towers were located directly south of the 

building to serve the chillers. 

The roof on the Power Plant was 

replaced in 1987 and the 10 ten year 

warranty has expired.  

Board Book Page 98



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 7 

Development Phase Two 

Figure 2 - Campus Development - Phase II

Northwest Building 

The Northwest Building was built in the 

second phase (1972) of the campus 

development and contains 29,221 GSF 

of classrooms, laboratories and offices 

for Radio & Television and Dental 

Hygiene programs. 

Constructed as a near-duplicate of 

Webb Hall and the Northeast Building, 

The Northwest Building is a masonry, 

Board Book Page 99



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 8 

concrete and steel-framed structure with 

a single floor on grade.  

The original construction provided 

chilled and hot water to air supply units 

in the mechanical mezzanines, which in 

turn supplied conditioned air to the 

classroom and student lounge areas of 

the buildings. Individual classroom unit 

ventilators and cooling-heating units 

conditioned the air in all the classrooms 

and offices. Unit heaters tempered the 

air in each of the vestibules. With these 

systems over 30 years old, they had 

reached the end of their service life and 

were grossly inefficient. 

As with Webb Hall and the Northeast 

Building, the Northwest Classroom 

Building had an open courtyard suffering 

from years of neglect. The courtyard 

was filled-in with permanent 

construction in 1999, increasing the 

building’s gross square footage by 5,026 

sq. ft. The new interior spaces provided 

additional classrooms, restrooms and 

offices.  

The Northwest Building was fully 

renovated in 2011. All old heating and 

air conditioning equipment was removed 

and replaced with a new more efficient 

geothermal heat pump system and tied 

into new campus geothermal loop. 

Galvanized water piping throughout the 

building was replaced with copper 

piping, and all lighting was updated with 

more efficient fixtures and lamps. The 

BAS devices were updated and 

connected to the campus wide BAS. 

Both fire alarm systems and door 

security systems were installed. 

All ceilings and pipe insulation 

containing asbestos were properly 

removed prior to renovations. Asbestos 

has been completely removed from the 

Northwest Building. 

Remaining ceiling construction in areas 

where asbestos abatement was 

completed were removed and new lay in 

ceilings, energy efficient lighting, 

mechanical equipment, and new 

carpeting, and paint were provided. 

The roof on the original Northwest 

Building was replaced in 1996. There 

are no apparent roof leaks. The roof 

warranty has expired. The roof over the 

Board Book Page 100



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 9 

infill area is original to the construction 

and the warranty has also expired. 

 

Field House 

Constructed during the second phase of 

the original campus construction, the 

Field House contains 42,107 GSF of 

space. The central gymnasium space is 

surrounded by a combination of 

classrooms, locker rooms and other 

miscellaneous spaces. This single-story 

steel-framed masonry building is 

composed of flat-roofed support areas 

surrounding a gymnasium space with a 

steep, cone-shaped roof. The original 

construction provided three mezzanine 

level mechanical rooms to supply 

conditioned air from air supply units to 

most of the rooms in this building. Air 

conditioning was added to the 

classroom areas of this building in 1993. 

The Fitness Center, Lobby and Locker 

Rooms were served by unit heaters 

while several other rooms contained 

finned tube convectors. The Gymnasium 

received a new public address system in 

2000. 

Besides the gymnasium, the building 

has offices for the Athletic Director and 

coaches, a training room, a fitness 

center, general classrooms, and a 

conference room.  In 2006, the Fitness 

Center Addition project was undertaken 

at the request of students, from a survey 

done by the Student Government 

Association.  71% of the 1,224 students 

surveyed indicated that they were willing 

to accept an increase in student fees to 

help pay for the new center.  The 

addition included areas for free weight 

workouts, self-directed exercise, cardio 

exercise, circuit training, stretching, and 

an aerobics room, and additional offices. 

In 2009, the College completed a 

ground-up renovation of the Field House 

to improve its energy efficiency as well 

as to solve a number of other ills. This 

building was equipped with seven indoor 

air handling units; four heating only, two 

ventilation only, and one heating and 

Board Book Page 101



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 10 

cooling. The seven air handlers were 

installed in the three upper level 

mechanical rooms. The pumps were 

housed in a main level mechanical 

room. The air handling units provided 

outside air for the entire building. All 

HVAC equipment in the building was fed 

by the campus chilled and heating hot 

water system. The air handling units 

were original to the building and were at 

the end of their life expectancy and 

failing. Rooms were unable to be 

adequately heated and cooled and there 

was some concern over the number of 

hourly room air changes.  

The College replaced the existing 

heating only Air Handling Units (AHU) 

with a ground source heat pump system 

to provide proper heating, cooling and 

ventilation of the Field House building. 

The new system utilizes the campus 

geothermal condenser loop. 

The College’s Andover Building 

Automation System was extended and 

interfaced with the new mechanical 

equipment. The system consists of a 

DDC controller for each heat pump 

networked to the BAS. The system 

provides the ability for the college to 

schedule, trouble shoot, monitor and 

adjust the mechanical systems remotely 

through any computer equipped with a 

web browser. 

The offices, classrooms, and many pipe 

fittings had asbestos containing ceiling 

finishes which were removed. The 

building is now free of asbestos. 

The warranty on the adhered membrane 

roof of the Field House expired in 2005 

and at this time the roof was resurfaced 

with an applied coating approved by the 

manufacturer of the membrane roof 

providing an additional warranty, which 

has expired. 

 

Vo-Tech Building 

The Vocational Technology Building 

constructed in 1973 contains 18,944 

GSF designed to house a welding shop, 

machine trades shop, an auto 

Board Book Page 102



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 11 

mechanics shop, farm mechanics’ shop 

and miscellaneous support rooms. This 

single-story load bearing masonry and 

steel structure was heated with air 

supply units in the shops, cabinet unit 

ventilators in the lobby and classrooms 

and finned tube convectors in the 

restrooms, locker rooms and storage 

rooms. The curved form of this building 

is adjacent to a circular service drive to 

provide vehicle access to the shop 

areas of the building. 

The roof on the Vo-Tech Building was 

replaced in 2014 and has a 20 year 

warranty, which expires in 2034. 

In 2009, the College replaced one of the 

Vo Tech Building’s existing heating-only 

Air Handling Units (AHU) with a ground 

source heat pump to provide proper 

heating, cooling and ventilation to the 

existing 2,000 foot space. The new 

system is tied into the campus 

diversification loop and well fields.    

The College replaced the existing 

aluminum feeders to this building as well 

as the remaining old original non-

harmonic mitigating building 

transformers. New grounding busses 

were added to the existing distribution 

panels that did not have a grounding 

bus. The fire alarm system was 

upgraded to a low voltage system with 

the proper audio and visual devices 

added to bring the system up to present 

standards.    

The College’s Andover Building 

Automation System was extended and 

interfaced with the new mechanical 

equipment. The system consists of a 

DDC controller for each heat pump 

networked to the campus wide BAS 

system. The system will provides the 

ability for the college to schedule, 

trouble shoot, monitor and adjust the 

mechanical systems remotely through 

any computer equipped with a web 

browser. The Vo Tech building was 

completely renovated in 2016. The work 

included completion of the conversion of 

the HVAC mechanical systems to 

geothermal, high efficiency lighting, and 

accessibility and safety improvements.

Board Book Page 103



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 12 

 

 

Bookstore 

Constructed in 1980, this building of 

5,200 GSF is considered a temporary 

structure and is generally categorized as 

post-frame construction. The treated 

wood-frame construction is covered with 

metal siding and roofing and interior 

finishes are minimal. Suspended unit 

heaters provide heated air for this 

building. In general, this building 

appears to be in fair condition, but not of 

quality suitable or durable enough for 

constant student use. 

A small area of the Bookstore Building is 

designed for retail sales while the 

remaining space is bookstore storage. 

The Bookstore has numerous issues 

which impose a substantial burden on 

the Physical Plant Operations. The 

building envelope has been 

compromised by time, the elements and 

physical damage. The building is poorly 

insulated, drafty, leaks in heavy rains, 

requires constant attention to keep 

vermin out and energy efficiency is 

simply not a possibility. 

Board Book Page 104



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 13 

Development Phase Three 

 

Figure 3 - Campus Development - Phase III

 

 

 

Board Book Page 105



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 14 

Student Center 

Built during the final phase of the 

original campus construction, the 

Student Center added 28,125 GSF to 

the campus. Masonry, reinforced 

concrete and steel framing form the 

building which houses Student Services, 

Administration, a lunch room which 

currently houses a Subway sandwiches 

store and a 300-seat Theater. Five 

rooftop multi-zone air conditioning units 

supply cool and warm air to all rooms in 

the building. Four of the rooftop air 

conditioning units are nearly 40 years 

old and are beginning to show signs of 

age; replacement should be expected 

within the next five years. Existing office 

area for Student Services has become 

overcrowded, forcing workstations into 

corridor areas. 

The roof on the Student Center building 

was replaced in 2000 and the warranty 

has expired. 

  

Board Book Page 106



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 15 

Other Development 

  

Figure 5 - Campus Development - Child Care Lab

Board Book Page 107



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 16 

 
Child Care Lab 

In 1988, with the use of local funds, 

Lake Land College built the 3072 GSF 

Child Care Lab. The brick veneer, wood-

framed structure housed a Child Care 

laboratory, a classroom and associated 

support spaces. An 80 percent efficient 

gas furnace with an “A” coil and 

condensing unit provide cool and warm 

air to this free-standing building.  The 

roof was replaced in 2012. 

The child care operation ceased 

effective June 30, 2017.  Future usage 

of this building is yet to be determined. 

 

Board Book Page 108



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 17 

 

Figure 6 - Campus Development – Ag Tech

 

 

Ag Tech Building 

This 11,376 GSF pole barn structure 

was built in 1992 to house the new John 

Deere Program. A large pole framed 

building with brick wainscot, metal siding 

and a metal roof, this facility contains 

classroom and offices as well as shop 

areas. Programs in the Ag Tech Building 

Board Book Page 109



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 18 

include John Deere Ag Tech and Ag 

Power Technology. 

The Ag Tech Building was constructed 

outside the perimeter road and is 

independent of the other campus 

mechanical systems.  A new exhaust 

was installed, as well as an electrical 

upgrade to the building in 2015. 

The building envelope is in good 

condition and is weather tight. 

 

Figure 7 - Campus Development – Police Department (and Webb Hall Infill) 

 

Board Book Page 110



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 19 

 

Police Department 

The 1994 acquisition of the Morgan 

property to the south of the main 

campus included a farm house and two 

out buildings. The house became the 

new home of the Lake Land College 

Police Department. One outbuilding was 

in poor condition and has been 

demolished, the other is used as 

storage for the College.  New windows 

were installed in October of 2010, and a 

new metal roof was installed in 2014. 

Figure 8 - Campus Development – Northeast and Northwest Infills

Board Book Page 111



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 20 

 

 

Figure 9 - Campus Development - Neal Hall

Board Book Page 112



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 21 

 
Neal Hall (formerly the East 
Classroom Building) 

Construction began in July of 1998 for 

the first new permanent building on 

Lake Land College’s campus since the 

late 1970s. Completed in 2000, the 

40,329 sq. ft. Neal Hall houses eight 

general classrooms, eight labs, two 

conference rooms and ten offices. Neal 

Hall is the home for the Nursing and Art 

programs, as well as several science 

labs. 

Neal Hall adds 9,736 sq. ft. of commons 

areas used by the students for study 

and for friendly interaction with other 

students and faculty. 

The roof is original to the construction 

and the warranty has expired. 

Board Book Page 113



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 22 

Figure 10 - Campus Development - West Building and Physical Plant and Farm Buildings 

Board Book Page 114



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 23 

 
West Building – Phase I 

In 2002, Lake Land College dedicated 

its newest classroom building. Intended 

to be built in three phases, Phase I of 

the West Classroom Building at 24,225 

sq. ft. houses the Civil Engineering, 

Agriculture and Cosmetology programs. 

Phase I of the West Building has six 

general classrooms, seven labs, one 

conference room and ten offices. The 

West Building increases the campus 

commons area total by 4,086 sq. ft. 

The roof is original to construction and 

the warranty has expired. 

 
Physical Plant Building and 
Barn 

After 34 years of operating out of a 

temporary building, the Physical Plant 

was given new permanent facilities in 

2002 when the College built the 20,000 

sq. ft. Physical Plant Building. The new 

Physical Plant Building is a pre-

engineered steel building with sheet 

metal shell and concrete slab on grade 

floor. Heat in the Physical Plant Building 

offices, print shop and electric shop and 

toilets is provided by 90+ efficiency gas 

furnaces. Heat in the greater shop is 

provided by hanging gas fired radiant 

heaters. 

Board Book Page 115



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 24 

Cooling is provided throughout by 

standard air-conditioning units. 

Operations conducted from the Physical 

Plant Building include shipping and 

receiving, campus mail, the electrical 

shop, the print shop and ample space 

for long-term storage and surplus 

equipment. 

 

The Barn, which is used to house 

equipment for the Agricultural Land Lab, 

is also a pre-engineered steel building of 

9,600 sq. ft. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 116



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 25 

Figure 11 - Campus Development – Alumni Park and Student Center Parking Lot

 

 

Alumni Park 

Alumni Park opened in 2007 and honors 

all Lake Land College Alumni. The Park 

offers a place for students, faculty, staff, 

alumni and friends of Lake Land College 

to enjoy the campus and its natural 

surroundings. The park includes 

walkways paved with engraved brick 

Board Book Page 117



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 26 

pavers, picnic tables and benches for 

the use and enjoyment of visitors. 

Student Center Parking Lot 

In anticipation of the future Luther 

Student Center Addition, the College 

built a parking area adjacent the 

proposed construction site. The parking 

area has helped alleviate parking 

shortages and will be used for materials 

and equipment staging during 

construction.

 

Figure 12 - Campus Development - West Building Addition, Net Zero Energy Building and 

Recycling Center

Board Book Page 118



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 27 

 
West Building Phases II & III 

Phases II and III of the West Building 

were constructed simultaneously. 

Completed in 2009, Phase II was 

designed to be compatible to the Phase 

I portion of the building in materials and 

form and connected to its existing 

circulation paths. The addition includes 

a new main entrance to the facility at a 

scale appropriate for creating a sense of 

entry to Lake Land College’s newest 

classroom building. 

Phase II of the West Building is the 

home for Lake Land College’s many 

technical programs and the Illinois 

Department of Transportation’s QC/QA 

program. Technology programs that 

were relocated to this addition include 

Architectural Construction Technology, 

Drafting, Computer-Aided Drafting, 

Electronics Engineering Technology, the 

Electronics Technician program, 

Industrial Maintenance Technology, 

Computer Integrated Manufacturing 

Technology, Mechanical-Electrical 

Technology, Telecommunications, 

CISCO Networking, and Print 

Maintenance Technology. Space types 

include instructional and hands on 

laboratories, classrooms, computer labs, 

commons areas, faculty offices, 

conference rooms, and a variety of 

support spaces. 

The various technical programs require 

many special accommodations including 

increased electrical supply and 

ventilation, materials storage and 

delivery and acoustical considerations. 

Due to the overlap between several of 

these programs it was vital to design the 

spaces to allow for the sharing of 

instructional equipment and partnering 

between instructors.

Board Book Page 119



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 28 

 

 

Net Zero Energy Building 

The Lake Land College Net-Zero 

Energy Building utilizes the best 

technology that we have currently in 

use, and has provided opportunities to 

try new technologies as they became 

available during construction, such as 

LED lighting. 

The College has experienced sustained 

growth for more than forty years and the 

Human Resources (HR) and Marketing 

and Public Relations (MPR) 

departments have grown right along 

with it until they reached the point where 

operating in their former spaces in the 

Bookstore was simply untenable.  

 

Recycling Center 

During the 2013 spring intersession, 

students in the Building Construction 

Technology (BCT) program had the 

opportunity to receive hands-on training 

by building Lake Land College’s new 

Recycling Center.  

The Recycling Center is located near 

the Physical Plant Building on the 

southwest side of campus and will be 

used as the main receptacle for all 

recyclable materials on campus. 

 

Board Book Page 120



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 29 

Workforce Development Center 

 

The College owned this property and 

sold the building on July 1, 2016, and 

now leases space in the building for the 

College’s Workforce Development 

Center (WDC). Located at 305 

Richmond Ave. East in Mattoon, the 

WDC occupies approximately 28,820 

GSF of the building.  The College sold 

the building on July 1, 2016. 

The facility is conveniently located in the 

heart of Mattoon’s business and retail 

district, adjacent Cross County Mall. 

  

Figure 11a - Workforce Development Center 

The building is a single story masonry 

and steel structure which houses the 

Center for Business and Industry (CBI), 

Commercial Driver’s License Training 

(CDL), Adult Education, Pathways, 

Workforce Investment Act (WIA), CEFS 

Economic Opportunity Corporation 

(CEFS) and Corrections.  

 

 

 

Board Book Page 121



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 30 

 

Kluthe Center for Higher 
Education and Technology 

While the main campus of Lake Land 

College was developing in Mattoon, a 

presence was also being established in 

Effingham with evening classes held at 

the Effingham High School and other 

locations throughout the city. In 1987, 

$250,000 from the estate of Minnie 

Kluthe was earmarked for a permanent 

Effingham facility for Lake Land College, 

and local contributions and private 

donations raised another $500,000. 

Application was made for a new capital 

project, a state payment of $1.6 million 

was received in 1993 and a ground 

breaking ceremony was held that fall for 

a permanent Lake Land College 

extension site, to be known as The 

Kluthe Center for Higher Education and 

Technology 

Construction began in 1994 and in 

August of 1995 a grand opening and 

ribbon cutting ceremony was held for 

the 24,000 square foot facility.  

 

Classes were held in the Kluthe Center 

for the first time in the fall of 1995 and 

for over 20 years, the Kluthe Center has 

continued to serve the community by 

offering a broad range of classes in both 

general education and career technical 

programs.  

The Kluthe Center is home to the 

Physical Therapist Assistant Program 

and the Massage Therapy Program. 

Massages clinics are held weekly as 

part of the student training process. The 

Center also offers the Certified Nurse 

Board Book Page 122



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 31 

Assisting Program, Practical Nursing 

Program and Associate Degree in 

Nursing Program. 

Functionality 

Way Finding 

Pedestrian Circulation 

Lake Land has aggressively pursued a 

program of sidewalk replacement which 

has kept the pedestrian ways safe and 

accessible through campus. Walkways 

are wide, smooth and durable and 

should remain serviceable for many 

years to come. Most areas of campus 

are served by at least one walkway 

though there are always opportunities 

for additional walks for convenience and 

safety. All sidewalks meet ADA 

requirements and crosswalks are striped 

to heighten motorists awareness. As 

previously mentioned, the flow of 

pedestrian circulation is a source of 

ongoing concern. New students and 

visitors have a very difficult time 

navigating the campus. The circular 

layout of the campus tends to be very 

disorienting. Most people navigating the 

campus cannot identify the real world 

compass points (north, east, south and 

west) at any particular location on the 

inner campus. Given this lack of 

orientation, the buildings and parking 

areas named for geographic locations 

become meaningless, i.e. northeast, 

northwest, etc.  

Directional assistance is currently 

provided by a series of back lighted 

signs around campus indicating paths of 

travel to individual buildings. Due to 

facility changes and new construction, 

several of these signs are outdated or 

incorrect. Way finding on the campus is 

particularly difficult because of the 

circular nature of the campus and the 

nearly identical buildings constructed in 

the original development program. Many 

Board Book Page 123



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 32 

signs are located where the ability to 

read, comprehend and react in the few 

moments afforded while driving by 

causes confusion and driving hazards. 

Also, adjacent to each entrance door is 

a smaller version of the back lighted 

signs that identifies the building.  

Portable signs with interchangeable 

panels has proven to be a reasonably 

effective solution. The signs have a high 

degree of readability and at a glance 

direct a person from where they are to 

where they need to go. Initially installed 

for special functions such as Orientation 

or SAB events, the signs are being used 

by more groups to help direct people 

throughout the campus.  

Vehicular Circulation 

Three vehicular entrances currently 

serve campus. The main entrance off of 

U.S. Route 45 enters approximately on 

the central east-west axis of the campus 

and approaches Neal Hall where the 

road tees and traffic proceeds to the 

northeast or southeast parking areas. 

The four lane, boulevard style main 

entrance carries only a small fraction of 

the daily campus traffic. 

 

The north entrance, by far the most 

utilized, is a two lane road which enters 

at the northeast corner of campus and 

joins the campus main circulation road 

at the corner of the northeast parking 

area. 

The third entrance from county road 

250N enters campus from the south and 

joins the circulation road at its 

southernmost point opposite the Student 

Center parking lot. 

US Route 45 is three lanes at both the 

main entrance and the north entrance. 

At each entrance there is one 

northbound through lane, a southbound 

Board Book Page 124



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 33 

through lane and a southbound left turn 

lane onto campus.  

There have been motor vehicle 

collisions on numerous occasions at 

these entrances given to the confusion 

that arises when the traffic flow off 

campus is at its peak. Drivers anxious to 

proceed from campus often misjudge, or 

fail to see entirely, cross traffic and pull 

into the path of oncoming vehicles which 

are often traveling at high rates of 

speed. To date, there has been one 

casualty and severe injuries and much 

property damage. 

This issue is constantly at the center of 

attention with students and staff. Many 

student research papers and newspaper 

articles have been devoted to it. The 

Illinois Department of Transportation 

(IDOT) is currently planning traffic 

control studies to determine additional 

traffic light feasibility. 

Campus Thoroughfares 

Circulation with the campus is provided 

by a number of two lane drives. The 

most notable is the circulation road, 

Podesta Drive. This road allows the 

circumnavigation of approximately 60% 

of the main campus’ perimeter. Access 

to various perimeter facilities is provided 

by additional two lane roads. In August 

of 2016, the Board of Trustees approved 

the naming of seven roadways on the 

College’s main campus.  The College 

has an ongoing program of crack repair 

and sealing for all roadways. Each year 

approximately 7000 lineal feet of cracks 

are repaired and all campus roadways 

are seal coated. Despite these efforts 

many roadways are in some stage of 

advanced deterioration.  

 

 

Board Book Page 125



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 34 

The most likely cause of this 

deterioration is poor subsurface 

drainage. A brief inspection of the 

roadways after rain illustrates this point. 

Many areas are under water or are sites 

of significant runoff. It is these areas 

which show plainly visible signs of 

advanced deterioration. Some areas 

have such advanced alligatoring that 

crack repair is simply no longer a 

possibility. During the summer of 2017, 

the College repaired several parking lots 

and roadways with a milling and 

repaving project, as well as pavement 

sealing and reflective crack repair.  

Circulation patterns also create 

numerous difficulties for motorists and 

pedestrians. When entering at the main 

campus entrance a driver is faced with 

the choice of entering either the 

northeast or southeast parking areas. 

Though directional signage is provided it 

is unclear that you must navigate 

through those parking areas to access 

the main circulation road at the far 

opposite corner of each parking lot. 

Likewise, when motorists are leaving 

campus, often in haste, drivers must 

make their way back through the 

parking areas to reach the main 

entrance. Many pedestrians leaving 

their automobiles are encountered along 

the way providing opportunities for 

mishaps. 

When entering campus at the north 

entrance drivers make a hard left turn at 

the baseball field and are immediately 

required to decide whether to continue 

into the northeast parking lot or to make 

Board Book Page 126



Campus History 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 35 

a sharp right hand turn across a 

pedestrian crosswalk to continue along 

Podesta Drive. Oncoming traffic at this 

intersection consists of drivers making a 

left turn to leave campus and cars in 

one of two lanes from the Northeast 

parking lot. Only two of these four 

means of egress via the north entrance 

have stop signs which are 

approximately 100 feet apart. Drivers 

are confused when approaching this 

intersection. This leads to congestion, 

unnecessary delays and a high potential 

for incidents. 

When leaving campus at the north 

entrance, traffic regularly becomes 

backed up often as far back as the 

baseball field while motorists wait for 

cross traffic on U.S. Route 45. Many are 

pressured to take risks by the demands 

of their schedules or other impatient 

drivers, far too frequently leading to the 

aforementioned accidents. 

Parking 

In conjunction with the College’s 

program of crack repair and sealing for 

all roadways each year, a parking area 

is treated as well. The locations are 

rotated over a period of several years so 

that every parking area is repaired and 

sealed every four years. Like the 

roadways, the parking areas all have 

some level of deterioration. The most 

likely cause of this deterioration is poor 

subsurface drainage. Though some 

drainage projects were completed to try 

to improve the conditions, many 

surfaces continue to deteriorate. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 127



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 36 

Overview of 
Recommendations 

Well-designed, modern facilities that are 

equipped with the correct instructional 

tools are required to provide the best 

possible education to our customers. 

The facilities should enable the 

functions of both academics and the 

services that support students in their 

academic mission. New buildings shall 

be constructed and existing buildings 

renovated to meet the College's needs 

and requirements. 

The College currently has prioritized 

capital projects, which will be submitted 

for funding via the Resource Allocation 

Management Program (RAMP) 

document.  

Observations 

Lake Land College, built primarily in the 

late 1960s and early 1970s, was an 

aging campus with an aging 

infrastructure in need of large scale 

repairs, replacements and upgrades. 

Renovation and remodeling projects 

have been an ongoing process, as 

noted in the sections above, and have 

resolved many of the original 

construction, mechanical, electrical and 

plumbing issues but much work 

remains.  

Board Book Page 128



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 37 

Through the analysis of existing 

conditions and discussions with College 

personnel and consultants, we have 

identified the following core concepts for 

the development of the Recommended 

Plan: 

 Campus Identity 

o Campus Art 

 Unified Campus;  

o Unity that makes the campus feel 
like a campus. 

o Way Finding; Clear, 
understandable directional aids 

o Vehicular and Pedestrian 
Circulation; safe, accessible and 
efficient ways. 

 Spaces; for Learning and Services 

o Modern, well equipped buildings 
with ample space for the intended 
function. 

 People Places; which provide; 

o locations to meet new people, 
talk with friends, share ideas and 
collaborate 

 Functionality; a high degree of user 
friendliness by providing: 

o Infrastructure; reliable, 
serviceable and energy efficient. 

Particular emphasis should be placed 

on creating a safe campus environment 

for students, staff and visitors, and to 

make accommodations for customers 

with special needs. 

Concepts 

Campus Identity 

The original campus master plan was 

the definition of “unified campus.” Every 

building interacted with the others and 

reflected the nature of the development 

as a whole. Circulation was uniform and 

everything “fit.” This is one of its major 

distinctions and one of its chief 

problems. 

More recent developments have placed 

buildings further away, but higher costs 

and inconvenience have been the price. 

The architecture of Lake Land College is 

primarily that of the original campus 

concept set 50 years ago in the first 

master plan. While some elements 

appear somewhat dated, they are 

distinctive and should be recognized as 

unique to the campus. 

People in the community recognize an 

image of Lake Land College 

immediately on sight. This is a good 

Board Book Page 129



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 38 

thing; its uniqueness is a quality to be 

embraced. 

New construction should not attempt to 

deny or hide this identity but should be 

developed using new forms and 

materials in innovative ways while 

maintaining sensitivity to the original 

concept. 

Unified Campus 

Prospective student and their families 

tend to develop significant feelings 

about the colleges they visit, typically 

slanted by how well it meets their 

expectations of what a college should 

be. 

The character of a campus, and whether 

it has that expectation of the ideal look 

and feel, can be a critical differentiator in 

the final decision. 

What makes a campus feel like a 

campus? Unity is the primary factor that 

makes a campus feel "like a campus." A 

harmonious interplay of buildings, open 

space, programming, security, and 

layout is essential to campus unity, and 

it becomes one of the school's primary 

marketing tools. It inspires confidence in 

parents, and a sense of well-being and 

motivation in prospective students. 

 

"The complete school in touch with the rest of 

the university represents the normal and correct 

form. The study of medicine must center around 

disease in concrete, individual forms. The ease 

with which the clinic and the laboratories may 

there illuminate each other is an incontestable 

advantage to both.” Abraham Flexner, Medical 

Education in the United States and Canada: A 

Report to the Carnegie Foundation for the 

Advancement of Teaching (Boston: The 

Merrymount Press, D. R. Updike, 1910) p. 72.

Board Book Page 130



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 39 

Updike’s assertion holds true of higher 

education in general. Interaction within 

and between academic “zones” 

facilitates the sharing of ideas and 

discoveries. From a practical standpoint, 

it allows for the sharing of resources and 

keeps infrastructure costs down. 

All campus buildings and spaces should 

be connected by ample walkways or 

roadways to ensure easy transition from 

one building to another. Parking areas 

and roadways should remain at the 

perimeter of the campus so as to 

maintain the cohesiveness of the 

campus buildings. A student should not 

have to traverse a large parking area to 

get from one class to another. 

A consistent site vocabulary also 

contributes to unifying a campus. 

Signage and graphics, hierarchical 

paving and pedestrian circulation 

systems, site furniture, bollards (short 

vertical posts), receptacles, fencing, and 

curbing lend legibility, orientation, and 

clear boundaries and perimeters. 

Campus gateways, signs, and other 

visual cues like plantings and lighting 

that assist visitors with finding their way 

around are also critical contributors to 

identity, creating important initial 

impressions. Informational kiosks 

animate a campus and provide visitors 

with orientation and updates on events. 

Reliable lighting provides a sense of 

security. Finally, the landscape itself 

gives the campus an inviting aesthetic 

and seasonal identity. The image of a 

campus is primarily identified by the 

overall development of the built 

environment, including the landscape 

and site elements. 

Spaces 

New facilities shall be constructed and 

existing buildings are to be renovated 

and modernized to provide state of the 

art space for instruction and student 

support services. Reorganized facilities 

create convenient zones for programs 

and services. 

The College makes requests for funding 

assistance from the state through the 

submission the College’s Resource 

Allocation Management Program 

(RAMP) document. The RAMP 

Board Book Page 131



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 40 

document contains requests for specific 

new or renovated facilities. The RAMP 

document is submitted to The Illinois 

Community College Board, (ICCB) and 

upon approval of particular projects by 

ICCB, the project requests are 

submitted to the Illinois Board of Higher 

Education (IBHE) where they are 

blended with the requests from all state 

higher learning institutions. The projects 

are then submitted to the state for 

funding. 

Planning for and providing facilities 

necessary to fulfill the educational 

requirements at Lake Land College is a 

major undertaking. The process 

required to develop space to serve the 

College through 2022 and beyond 

cannot be achieved through last minute 

provisions and little preparation. Major 

projects require time periods of three to 

four years to complete. This is why the 

College must continually update and 

adjust its capital plans and master plan 

as we seek to anticipate the changing 

job market of the communities in our 

district. 

The College’s program of development 

is both ambitious and dynamic and we 

are committed to developing new 

teaching spaces for the benefit of our 

students. Expectations regarding the 

quality, style and functionality of 

potential students and their families are 

ever rising. To continue to be the choice 

of our district’s high school graduates, 

we must rise to those expectations. 

The FY 2019 RAMP document will have 

requests for one expansion and one 

large scale renovation as follows: 

People Places 

From its inception Lake Land College 

has planned for interaction spaces for 

the students and staff. Recessed 

outdoor seating areas and wide indoor 

commons areas allow many 

opportunities to meet new people, talk 

with friends, share ideas and collaborate 

on homework or other projects. They 

provide space for campus events and 

displays. Development should continue 

to make new places where individual or 

groups can seek a space study quietly 

Board Book Page 132



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 41 

or to socialize together without risk of 

disturbing those who want quiet. 

A campus looks successful and alive 

when there is activity. People tend to 

congregate with other people. Creating 

People Places and making certain the 

locations have all the qualities that make 

them useful and successful is an 

ongoing priority for the College. 

Lake Land College has two depressed 

seating areas on the inner campus 

which are products of the original 

Master Plan. In 2006, the Foundation 

completed construction of Alumni Park 

which features two cedar arbors, an 

original sculpture, a series of fountains 

and a small amphitheater which can be 

used for performances or classes. 

A second phase of Alumni Park has 

been planned and awaits completion of 

the Student Center Addition and 

relocation of the bookstore. The 

pedestrian walkway which now extends 

west towards the foot bridge will extend 

east directly onto the College’s main 

axis. New seating areas and 

landscaping will be introduced as will a 

lawn area where group activities can be 

held. 

Completion of the axial walkway will 

simplify what is now a convoluted 

process for pedestrians to make their 

way to the West Building from the main 

campus. 

Also available on the grounds of the 

College are a 9-hole Frisbee golf 

course, as well as a cross-country track 

that are enjoyed by students, staff, and 

the community.  The newest addition is 

the veterans park, which is located 

between Podesta Drive and the campus 

pond, and consists of hardscape areas, 

natural habitat and planting areas, and a 

paved walking path.  The park was 

funded through a donation to the 

Foundation, and will also be used to 

recognized veterans of the community 

who have attended Lake Land College. 

Future development of outdoor spaces 

should adhere to the following 

guidelines: 

A space should be planned with a 

purpose in mind. It must be of 

appropriate scale and detail to provide 

Board Book Page 133



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 42 

for the needs of the users. A space for 

large activities must be large and 

durable. Spaces for smaller activities or 

groups should be thoughtful and while 

some level of privacy may be desired, 

an eye to visibility and security must be 

maintained. 

Any outdoor space should be easily 

accessible and highly serviceable. Ease 

of use and maintenance of these spaces 

is essential for their continued success. 

Generally, spaces for large groups or 

high levels of activity should be located 

immediately adjacent to highly travelled 

walkways. Smaller spaces for tranquil 

activities can be more remotely located 

to maintain a quiet atmosphere. Ample 

seating should be provided in all areas. 

Initiatives 

Way-Finding 

Pedestrian Circulation 

Clearly deficient in the development of 

the campus is a comprehensive 

directional system to get students, staff 

and visitors around and to their ultimate 

destinations.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 134



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 43 

Campus Identity 

New construction should not attempt to 

deny or hide this identity but should be 

developed using new forms and 

materials in innovative ways while 

maintaining sensitivity to the original 

concept. 

Campus Art 

Art can be found in a number of 

locations throughout campus. In the 

LRC, photography, painting and drawing 

displays are frequent and the Student 

Center Building has photographs on 

display in Laker Point and the 

Administration wing.  

Capital construction projects partially 

utilizing state funds have provided 

funding for campus art. Seven outdoor 

sculptures were placed throughout the 

grounds. These sculptures have created 

points of interest previously missing 

from otherwise plain buildings and lawn 

areas. 

It is not uncommon to see students 

sitting near these pieces having lunch or 

a study session.  

New capital projects will provide 

additional funds for art to be placed 

around campus. Indoor sculpture, 

paintings and photography are among 

the mediums available. The College 

should begin to make some preliminary 

decisions concerning what type of art 

they would like and where it should be 

placed. 

Art is a wonderful thing to share with our 

students and staff. In this region of 

Illinois, art galleries and museums are 

far and few between. Art gives us a 

chance to further enrich the experiences 

students have while attending Lake 

Land College. 

Additional funds for art will become 

available with subsequent capital 

projects such as the Luther Student 

Center Addition. 

Functionality 

Once the need for facilities is 

established, it is necessary to put them 

together in a way that is well organized, 

efficient and enjoyable to students and 

Board Book Page 135



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 44 

staff from the moment they enter the 

campus until the time they leave. 

As they enter the campus they should 

have a sense of arrival, a feeling of 

being welcomed. Inviting thoroughfares 

and pedestrian ways need to be 

arranged to make certain people get to 

their destination quickly and with 

minimal confusion.  

Existing and new buildings and plazas 

must contribute to a sense that they are 

parts of a whole. The integration of 

buildings, walkways, landscaping, 

roadways and parking should look like 

they belong as parts of a single 

organized unit. 

Pathways as well as parking lots should 

be inviting and should be organized in a 

way which creates a pleasant 

experience for users as they progress to 

their destination. 

Infrastructure 

GIS/Master Site Plan/Future 
Development 

A sharable, highly detailed map of the 

campus site and infrastructure is under 

development and will benefit the College 

in a variety of ways. 

A single repository for all site 

information will reduce upfront costs 

involved in preliminary planning for new 

facilities and maintenance projects. 

Users will be able to access constantly 

updated site information enabling them 

to complete their jobs more quickly and 

efficiently. 

The immediate benefit will be saving 

time and money spent on looking 

through files, paper drawings or 

hundreds of electronic files to find the 

one with the needed information. A fully 

functional GIS system will be available 

wherever access to the internet is 

available providing answers in just a few 

clicks.  

When excavating on campus it is quite 

common to accidentally damage 

undocumented or previously unknown 

underground piping and wiring. 

Incidents of this type are costly and 

invariably slow projects as contractors 

proceed more cautiously. This 

represents the greatest potential for cost 

Board Book Page 136



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 45 

savings to the College. A 

comprehensive catalog of buried 

infrastructure, mechanical systems, 

wiring and plumbing would prepare 

excavation contractors more thoroughly 

and limit this type of incident.  

 

Mechanical Systems 

As noted in the Campus Facilities 

History, Lake Land College has 

completed renovation projects for the 

Field House, the Northeast and 

Northwest Buildings, the Judge Learning 

Resource Center, Webb Hall and Phase 

II of the West Building. Additionally, new 

mechanical systems which also work 

with the geothermal system have been 

installed in Neal Hall, The Student 

Center and the West building. 

Renovations were proactive and 

comprehensive in replacing mechanical, 

plumbing and electrical systems to bring 

them up to codes and modern efficiency 

standards. 

 

 

All new heating and air-conditioning 

systems will be added to the existing 

Andover control system. The Andover 

system will provide the ability for the 

College to schedule, trouble-shoot, 

monitor and remotely adjust the 

mechanical systems, on a room-by-

room basis through any PC equipped 

with internet access and a web browser.

Board Book Page 137



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 46 

 

Electrical Systems 

As with the mechanical systems, many 

electrical upgrades have taken place 

over the past five years. The Field 

House, the Northeast and Northwest 

Buildings, the Judge Learning Resource 

Center, Vo-Tech and Webb Hall have all 

received almost complete electrical 

renovations. 

There is still work to be done on the 

West Building, Neal Hall and the Luther 

Student Center. This work will be done 

concurrently with any mechanical 

renovations to these same buildings. 

Work will include replacement of 

electrical distribution panels. New 

grounding busses will be added to all 

panels which presently do not have a 

grounding bus.   

A project has been completed to replace 

many fixtures and to connect them to 

the building automation system. 

Communications and Data 
Systems 

Telecommunications systems on the 

campus are in a constant state of 

expansion. By adopting the concept of 

“any media to anyplace” the College 

commits to installing new higher speed 

and greater capacity infrastructure. The 

fiber optic backbone is currently running 

at 1 GB, this too will need to be 

expanded to accommodate future 

needs. 

Further information and detail are 

available from Information Systems and 

Services. 

Security Systems 

Electronic Security Systems 

The College is engaged in a multi-year 

door access project to increase security 

on our campus.

Board Book Page 138



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 47 

The door access hardware and software 

will integrate with the existing BAS. 

Each of the major buildings will have at 

least one proximity card reader at a 

main entrance. The exterior doors of all 

the major buildings will be equipped with 

electronic lock mechanisms and door 

contacts so that the buildings can be 

locked down in the event of an 

emergency. In keeping with fire codes, 

exiting will be allowed at all doors at any 

time. Students and staff will have a 

proximity card that, if valid, will allow 

them to enter the building during a 

specified time. After regular school 

hours, all the exterior doors will lock and 

a person will need a valid card to access 

the building after regular hours. During 

regular school hours, the doors will be 

kept unlocked.  

The lockdown sequence will be 

password protected and web based. 

This will allow Campus Police officers as 

well as some College administration to 

initiate a lockdown protocol in the event 

of an emergency. During lockdown, only 

a few cards possessed by public safety 

officers, some school administrators and 

some physical plant employees will be 

able to open a building’s exterior doors.  

Roofs 

Roofs will continue to be addressed on 

a case-by-case basis. Where roofs are 

known to be compromised or have 

grossly exceeded their anticipated 

service life, replacements will be made 

as budgets allow. There are currently 

seven roof areas which are out of 

warranty including portions of the Field 

House, the Power Plant, the Northwest 

Building, Neal Hall, Phase I of the West 

Building, Learning Resource Center, 

and the Luther Student Center. 

Proposed Facilities 

Rural Development Technology 
Center 

The Lake Land College Kluthe Center 

for Higher Education and Technology in 

Effingham, Illinois was the College’s first 

permanent extension center. Today, 

over 500 residents enroll in different 

credit and non-credit classes. The 

24,174 square foot center 

Board Book Page 139



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 48 

serves the residents of the College 

district's southern region.  

An additional facility is needed to 

complement the existing Kluthe Center 

and will greatly increase the College’s 

ability to meet the growing needs of the 

residents of Effingham County and the 

surrounding area. 

The Rural Development Technology 

Center, to be constructed in Effingham 

adjacent to the Kluthe Center, will 

consist of a 36,070 square foot building 

for use as an educational center for 

some of the College’s technical and 

healthcare programs such as Massage 

Therapy, Emergency Medical Services 

and Heating, Ventilation, Air 

Conditioning and Refrigeration classes. 

A Hands-On-Training Laboratory will be 

included as well as General Education 

Classrooms. In addition, ancillary 

spaces will include storage areas 

dedicated to each discipline plus office 

space for faculty and staff, commons 

areas, restroom facilities and 

mechanical and electrical equipment 

rooms. 

Site development includes 300 

additional parking spaces, landscaping, 

lighting and sidewalks. 

The site will require a new electric 

service, new natural gas service, city 

water and sewerage. 

Rehabilitation of Core Campus 
Buildings 

The original buildings on the Lake Land 

College campus were completed in the 

early 1970s. The College has recently 

completed energy savings renovations 

on most core buildings of the main 

campus though some comparatively 

minor renovations remain. This has 

been the first major renovation for most 

of these buildings since they were 

constructed. 

Given the ever quickening pace of the 

increase of both energy and information 

Board Book Page 140



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 49 

technologies, we can expect the need 

for additional renovations to these 

buildings before another 40 years has 

passed. Due to the aforementioned 

budget issues the state has been 

understandably slow to help with 

funding for capital projects. It is 

conceivable that requested projects may 

be 20 years in the coming. We have 

therefore decided to leave this request 

in the RAMP document under these 

assumptions. 

ICCB has not recommended funding 

this project. 

Further Information 

For detailed budget and scope 

information for the capital projects 

described above, see the current 

version of Lake Land College’s RAMP 

Document. 

Work in Progress 

Student Services Building 
Addition 

The Luther Student Center Addition 

project consists of an addition to the 

existing Luther Student Center at Lake 

Land College to consolidate all student 

support service functions in one location 

creating a “one-stop” operation. Student 

support services to be located within the 

addition include Admissions, Financial 

Aid / Veteran Services, Career Services, 

Counseling, Orientation and Disability 

Services, TRIO-Student Support 

Services, TRIO Destination College, and 

Student Life.  

Due to a lack of state funding, this 

project has not proceeded.  The College 

is currently examining revised plans to 

move forward with a “scaled back” 

version of the original plan for the 

addition along with remodeling a portion 

of the existing building aimed at 

modernizing and fully integrating the 

building into the College’s geothermal 

loop. 

The project originally provided an 

additional 52,690 gross square feet to 

the campus and will be designed in 

accordance with Leadership in Energy 

and Environmental Design (LEED) 

Silver Certification requirements at a 

minimum. This could include energy-

efficient and environmentally-friendly 

Board Book Page 141



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 50 

systems, materials and building 

components that will meet strict national 

sustainable building design standards, 

and integration with Lake Land 

College’s existing ground-sourced 

geothermal exchange system. – Legat 

Architects 

Board Book Page 142



Recommendations 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 51 

 

APPENDIX A 

Square Foot reports 
and Building Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 1 - Building Square Footage 

Board Book Page 143



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 52 

APPENDIX B 

Building Floor Plans 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 144



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 53 

Board Book Page 145



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 54 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 146



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 55 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 147



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 56 

Board Book Page 148



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 57 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 149



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 58 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 150



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 59 

Board Book Page 151



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 60 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 152



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 61 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 153



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 62 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 154



Appendices 

Lake Land College 2017 Facilities Master Plan 63 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 155



 

 

Board of Trustees 

Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

October 4, 2017 

Recommendation for Naming of Northwest Building Room 114 

On June 1, 2017, the College Foundation submitted a recommendation for the naming of Northwest 
Building Room 114, also known as the Dental Hygiene Lab, as the Heartland Dental – Dental Hygiene 
Lab for a period of five years. Heartland Dental, Inc. made a $250,000 cash gift to the Foundation 
which was used to provide an upgrade of facilities and equipment for the Dental Hygiene Lab. 
Additionally, through their purchasing power and discount from the vendors, the total impact was 
valued at approximately at $850,000.  

Per Board Policy 11.10, the Board of Trustees has the legal responsibility for officially naming, when 
appropriate, all properties and structures under its jurisdiction. The process requires that the Board Chair 
appoint an advisory committee composed of three Trustees, with the College President and the 
Executive Officer of the College Foundation serving as ex-officio members, for the purpose of reviewing 
recommendations for the naming of physical components at the College. During a Special Board meeting 
held June 8, 2017, Chair Storm appointed the members of the Buildings and Site Committee as the 
Naming Advisory Committee to consider this naming request. After an in-depth review during a 
Committee meeting held later on the same date, the Naming Advisory Committee voted to recommend 
to the Board approval of this naming request and subsequently submitted this recommendation to the 
Board as a non-action item during the June 12, 2017, regular Board meeting.  

Per Policy 11.10, the required waiting period for the Board to vote on a naming recommendation will 
have been met by the date of the October 9, 2017, regular Board meeting. Thus, it is respectfully 
requested the Board approve the naming of the Northwest Building Room 114 as the Heartland Dental 
- Dental Hygiene Lab for a period of five years during its October 9th Board meeting.  

 

 

Board Book Page 156



Board Book Page 157



 

 

Board of Trustees 

Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

October 4, 2017 

Recommendation for Naming of Park Area on Main Campus 

On June 1, 2017, the College Foundation submitted a recommendation for the naming of a park 
located in an area between the campus pond and Podestá Drive on the campus main grounds as the 
Dr. William L. and Margaret Podestá Park. Funds for the park were given by Ms. Willie Podesta 
Young, daughter of Dr. William L. and Margaret Podestá, along with memorial gifts given at the time of 
her father’s passing. Construction of the new park began this past summer following Board approval of 
the project in June 2017.  

Per Board Policy 11.10, the Board of Trustees has the legal responsibility for officially naming, when 
appropriate, all properties and structures under its jurisdiction. The process requires that the Board Chair 
appoint an advisory committee composed of three Trustees, with the College President and the 
Executive Officer of the College Foundation serving as ex-officio members, for the purpose of reviewing 
recommendations for the naming of physical components at the College. During a Special Board meeting 
held June 8, 2017, Chair Storm appointed the members of the Buildings and Site Committee as the 
Naming Advisory Committee to consider this naming request. After an in-depth review during a 
Committee meeting held later on the same date, the Naming Advisory Committee voted to recommend 
to the Board approval of this naming request and subsequently submitted this recommendation to the 
Board as a non-action item during the June 12, 2017, regular Board meeting.  

Per Policy 11.10, the required waiting period for the Board to vote on a naming recommendation will 
have been met by the date of the October 9, 2017, regular Board meeting. Thus, it is respectfully 
requested the Board approve the naming of the park located in an area between the campus pond and 
Podestá Drive on the campus main grounds as the Dr. William L. and Margaret Podestá Park.  

 

 

Board Book Page 158



Board Book Page 159



Board Book Page 160



Board Book Page 161



Board Book Page 162



Board Book Page 163



Board Book Page 164



Board Book Page 165



Board Book Page 166



Board Book Page 167



LAKE LAND COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HUMAN RESOURCES REPORT 
October 09, 2017 

  
The following employees are recommended for leave 
 
 Byrum, Larissa FMLA 09/06/17-1/30/17 
 Jackson, Tom FMLA 09/06/17-9/29/17 
 Morris, Brian FMLA 10/23/17-1/23/17 
 Rook, Frank FMLA 09/05/17-12/5/17 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Meaker, Charles Peer to Peer Assistant - SSE 09/08/2017 
    Primary Position is Lake Land Student Trustee                
Part-time 
    Huddlestun, Carla Adjunct Faculty Business Division Sub 10/10/2017 
    Primary Position is Adj Faculty Business                     
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor-Disability Services - Student 08/25/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst            
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor-Student Community Education 08/25/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst            
    Malcome, Logan Tutor-Disability Services - Student 08/25/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor-Student Carl Perkins               
    Malcome, Logan Tutor-Student Community Education 08/25/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor-Student Carl Perkins               
    Malcome, Logan Tutor - Student Learning Assistance 08/25/2017 
   Primary Position is Tutor-Student Carl Perkins  
    Thomas, Amelia Adjunct Faculty Math and Science  09/15/2017 
   Primary Position is Adj Faculty Math/Science                 
    Yealick, Sabrina Tutor-Disability Services - Bachelor 08/25/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor-Bachelor's-LRC                     
    Yealick, Sabrina Tutor-Student Community Education 08/25/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor-Bachelor's-LRC 
                  
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Denton, Debra Perkins Test Proctor 09/05/2017 
    Primary Position is Adj Faculty Math/Science                 
   Jobe, Bryan Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 08/25/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Rudibaugh, Mike Perkins Coordinator 09/25/2017 
    Primary Position is Geography/Earth Science Instr             
    Satterfield, Ryan Perkins Student Worker - Technology 09/13/2017 
   Primary Position is Wind Turbine Technician                  

Board Book Page 168



    Yealick, Sabrina Tutor - Bachelor's Carl Perkins 08/25/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor-Bachelor's-LRC                     
     
 College Work-study 
 Hatcher, Tatum College Work Study – Alt Education 08/21/2017 
    Primary Position is Pathways Classroom Asst 
 Malcome, Logan College Work Study – Business  08/24/2017 
  Primary Position is Tutor Lrng Asst            
  
End Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are ending their additional appointment 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
    Heuerman, Dustin  Perkins Coordinator 09/22/2017 
 
Part-time 
    Borntreger, Cody  Admissions Student Asst 09/21/2017 
    Brown, Rex  Print Shop Technician Asst 06/30/2017 
    Frazier, Darrius  Newspaper Editor 09/05/2017 
    Morrison, Jensyn  Adm & Rec Data Entry Asst 09/20/2017 
     
Unpaid      
 Davis, Michael  Work N Learn Business 05/12/2017 
  
New Hire-Employees 
  The following employees are recommended for hire 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Jean, Aaron Tech Team Volunteer 09/07/2017 
    Mumm, Tiffany Dual Credit Instructor 09/22/2017 
 
Full-time 
 Arena, Amanda Marketing Production Specialist 10/10/2017 
 Beagle, Richard Assistant Network Administrator 10/10/2017 
 Hostetter, Holly  Custodian 10/16/2017 
 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
 Runde, Erica Employment Specialist 10/12/2017 
    Siercks, Kenneth Correctional Occupations Instr-St. Charles 09/25/2017 
 
Part-time 
    Dinc, Murat Adjunct Faculty Technology 09/11/2017 
    Freesmeier, Donald Adjunct Faculty Math/Science  08/21/2017 
    Gatons, Grace Bookstore Rush Worker 08/15/2017 
    Gullidge, Bryce Assistant Farm Manager 09/12/2017 
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor - Student Learning Asst  08/25/2017 
    Merryman, Reilly Physical Plant Assistant 09/07/2017 

Board Book Page 169



    Schoonover, Crystal ISS Clerical Data Entry 09/11/2017 
    Stamps, Ian Adj Reading Instructor 08/21/2017 
    Sudkamp, Dustin Graphic Designer Pre-Flighter 09/19/2017 
    Tiffin, Andrea Allied Health LPN Substitute  09/15/2017 
    Woodruff, Megan Bookstore Rush Worker 08/16/2017 
    Yealick, Sabrina Tutor - Bachelor's Degree - Learning Asst 08/25/2017 
 
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Black, Thomas Pathways Classroom Assistant 09/05/2017 
    Finley, Ardeth Adult Education Classroom Assistant 08/28/2017 
    Kauffman, Layne Perkins Student Worker-Agriculture 08/29/2017 
    Ruholl, Linda Perkins Test Proctor 09/06/2017 
    Shuff, Kara Pathways Classroom Assistant 09/06/2017 
     
College Work-studys 
 Bannick, Brittany College Work Study - Counseling 08/21/2017 
    Haworth, Konnar College Work Study - Physical Plant 08/21/2017 
    Konesko, Ronald College Work Study - Men's Basketball 08/30/2017 
    Lenz, William College Work Study - Printshop 08/21/2017 
    Lewis, Brock College Work Study - Physical Plant 09/18/2017 
    Malcome, Logan College Work Study - Business 08/24/2017 
    Noll, Brenden College Work Study - Business 08/24/2017 
    Pierson, Chloe College Work Study - Business 09/07/2017 
    Pierson, Megan College Work Study - Printshop 08/21/2017 
    Prather, Jonathon College Work Study - CCS 08/21/2017 
    Rothrock, Brett College Work Study - Business 08/30/2017 
  
Terminations/Resignations 
  The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Locke, Sarah Peer to Peer Assistant-Humanities 09/05/2017 
    Sims, Gara Work and Learn-Bookstore 09/05/2017 
 
Full-time 
 Coleman, Mina Corr Career Tech Instr-Robinson CC 
    Durbin, Joseph Corr Cust Maint Instr-Taylorville CC 09/29/2017 
    Hesseldenz, Amy Computer Programmer 09/15/2017 
    Nicholson, Cindy Corr Comm Cooking Inst- East Moline CC 09/29/2017 
 
Part-time 
    Armstrong, Zachary Bookstore Rush Worker 09/05/2017 
    Daily, Jacob Fitness Center Specialist 09/22/2017 
    Frazier, Darrius Newspaper Ed Student News 09/12/2017 
    Harris, Kylie Bookstore Rush Worker 09/05/2017 
    Hedges, Jennifer Financial Aid Outreach Coordinator 09/12/2017 
    Lotfdar, Saghi Bookstore Rush Worker 09/05/2017 

Board Book Page 170



    McRoberts, Sara Newspaper Ed Student News 09/12/2017 
    Moody, Caleb Admissions Student Assistant 09/21/2017 
    Moore, Trevor Bookstore Rush Worker 09/05/2017 
    Morris, Brittany Outreach Adv/Mentor TRIO Destination Coll 08/30/2017 
    Morrison, Jensyn Adm & Rec Data Entry Asst 09/21/2017 
    Owens, Vern Adj Doc College Funded Instr 08/12/2016 
    Piescinski, Leah Admissions Student Assistant 09/21/2017 
    Scott, Sawyer Bookstore Rush Worker 09/05/2017 
    Shriver, Jamie ISS Clerical Data Entry 08/14/2017 
    Sloan, Caitlin Bookstore Rush Worker 09/05/2017 
    Smith, Chandra Counseling - Student Worker 08/18/2017 
    Snyder, Elijah Admissions Student Assistant 09/21/2017 
    Wakefield, Emily Library Assistant 08/24/2017 
    Wheeler, Allison Newspaper Ed Student News 09/12/2017 
 
College Work-study     
 Scott, Jacob College Work Study-Student Life 09/12/2017 
  
Transfers/Promotions 
  The following employees are recommended for a change in position 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
     Bustillos, Autumn Central Receiving Mailroom Assistant (FT) 10/10/2017 
  Transferring From Mailroom Assistant (PT) 
 Roberts, Wrobria Financial Aid Outreach Specialist 10/02/2017 
    Transferring From Central Receiving/Mailroom Asst 
 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
     Urfer, Brent Correctional Cust Maint Instr- Taylorville CC 10/02/2017 
    Transferring From Corr Cust Maint Instr-Robinson CC 
Part-time 
     Henderson, Corinne Marketing Communications Specialist 10/02/2017 
    Transferring From Library Assistant 
     Pierce, Kelly Financial Aid Outreach Coordinator (PT) 10/02/2017 
    Transferring From Financial Aid Outreach Specialist (FT) 

Board Book Page 171


	TITLEPG.TLE Regular meeting
	Table of Contents Oct 2017 Board Book
	100917 Agenda Board of Trustees Meeting
	091117 Minutes
	092517 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	AHA letter
	October 2017 Student Ambassadors
	October 2017 Student Laureate Nomination Memo
	Curriculum Committee Highlights- April 2017 to August 2017
	October 2017 Board Policy 07.12 Memo
	October 2017 07.12 Talented Student Scholarships
	Calendar of Events 2017
	Correspondence I
	MEMO Policy Changes Sections 1 thru 4 and 8 from 2017 Annual Review
	Sections 1 thru 4 Proposed Policy Changes Fall 2017
	0105.POL
	0202.POL
	0208.POL
	0210.POL
	0212.POL
	0216.POL
	0307.POL
	0312.POL
	0404.POL
	0406.POL

	Section 8 Proposed Policy Changes Fall 2017
	0801.POL
	0802.POL
	0803.pol
	0805.POL
	0806.POL

	MEMO 0807 Policy Change
	0807.pol Proposed Revisions for Sept 2017 BOT Meeting
	October 2017 Memo Proposed Board Policies 04.07 and 11.21
	September 2017 Board Policy 04.07 College Spokesperson
	September 2017 Board Policy 11.21 Marketing Materials and Publications
	October 2017 TSA Guidelines Memo
	October 2017 Athletic Guidelines 2018-2021
	October 2017 Livestock Judging Guidelines 2018-2021
	October 2017 07.12 Talented Student Scholarships
	FY2018 - August Financials Packet
	Tuition Memo - Spring 2018
	Health Insurance 2018 Renewal Recommendation Memo
	Ford Fusion Purchase Packet
	2017-011 2017 Ford Fusion Hybrid Platinum Purchase - Memo
	2017-011 2017 Ford Fusion Hybrid Platinum Purchase - Bid Tab

	Foundation Tax Levy Packet
	Board Memo
	LEVY2017Resolution
	Secretarys Certificate

	October 2017 SGA Freshmen Election Memo
	October 2017 SGA Election Results_Redacted
	Facilities Master Plan Update Memo
	2017 Master Plan
	MEMO from President for Heartland Dental Lab Naming
	Naming Heartland Dental Memo Revised
	MEMO from President for Podesta Park Naming
	Naming Podesta Park Memo Signed 060117
	Perkins Specialist Position
	BOT memo Dir Fnd Op
	Intergovernmental agreement Southwestern Illinois College_Redacted
	October 9 2017 Human Resources Report



